# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

## FORM 10-Q

(Mar	k One)				
X	QUARTERLY REI 1934	PORT PURSUANT TO SECTION	13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECUE	RITIES EXCHANGE ACT	Γ <b>OF</b>
		For the quarterly per	riod ended June 30, 2018		
			OR		
	TRANSITION RE	PORT PURSUANT TO SECTION	13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECUE	RITIES EXCHANGE ACT	Г <b>OF</b>
		For the transition period f	rom to		
		Commission File	Number: 001-38224		
			unity Bancorp  at as Specified in its Charter)		
	incorp	Federal c or other jurisdiction of coration or organization) Westchester Avenue	(I.R.S. I	357928 Employer ation No.)	
	(Address	Bronx, NY		462 Code)	
	(Address o	of principal executive offices)  Registrant's telephone number,	رحاب including area code: (718) 931-9000	Code)	
1934 requi	during the preceding 12 n rements for the past 90 day	whether the registrant (1) has filed all report nonths (or for such shorter period that the region is Yes No whether the registrant has submitted electron	istrant was required to file such reports)	, and (2) has been subject to such	filing
	red to be submitted and po	osted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T quired to submit and post such files). Yes	(§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the p		
		whether the registrant is a large accelerated fithe definitions of "large accelerated filer," "a Act.			
Large	accelerated filer			Accelerated filer	
Luisc	accelerated filer	$\square$ (Do not check if a smaller reporting co	mpany)	Smaller reporting company	$\times$
		$\boxtimes$			
Non-	ging growth company				
Non- Emer	If an emerging growth c	ompany, indicate by check mark if the registr ting standards provided pursuant to Section 1.		ransition period for complying wi	th any
Non- Emer	If an emerging growth cor revised financial accoun		$B(a)$ of the Exchange Act. $\square$		th any

## **Table of Contents**

		Page
PART I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	1
Item 1.	Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)	1
	Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition	1
	Consolidated Statements of Income	2
	Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income	3
	Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity	4
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows	5
	Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements	6
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	41
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	55
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	55
PART II.	OTHER INFORMATION	56
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	56
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	56
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	56
Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	56
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	56
Item 5.	Other Information	56
Item 6.	<u>Exhibits</u>	57
<u>Signatures</u>		59

## PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

## Item 1. Consolidated Financial Statements.

## **PDL Community Bancorp and Subsidiaries**

## Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (Dollars in thousands, except share data)

		June 30, 2018	De	cember 31, 2017
	J)	J <b>naudited)</b>		
ASSETS				
Cash and due from banks (Note 2):		- 000		6.5
Cash	\$	7,088	\$	24,746
Interest-bearing deposits in banks		42,094		34,978
Total cash and cash equivalents		49,182		59,724
Available-for-sale securities, at fair value (Note 3)		28,144		28,897
Loans receivable, net (Note 4)		850,426		798,703
Accrued interest receivable		3,350		3,335
Premises and equipment, net (Note 5)		28,366		27,172
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock (FHLB), at cost		2,617		1,511
Deferred tax assets (Note 8)		3,805		3,909
Other assets		2,923		2,271
Total assets	\$	968,813	\$	925,522
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY				
Liabilities:				
Deposits (Note 6)	\$	753,255	\$	713,985
Accrued interest payable		141		42
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance		5,491		5,025
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank and others (Note 7)		37,775		36,400
Other liabilities		5,573		5,285
Total liabilities		802,235		760,737
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)				
Stockholders' Equity:				
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par value; 10,000,000 shares authorized, none issued				
Common stock, \$0.01 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized; 18,463,028 shares				
issued and outstanding		185		185
Additional paid-in-capital		84,488		84,351
Retained earnings		96,495		94,855
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (Note 14)		(8,076)		(7,851)
Unearned compensation - ESOP; 651,375 shares (Note 9)		(6,514)		(6,755)
Total stockholders' equity		166,578		164,785
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity	\$	968,813	\$	925,522

## Consolidated Statements of Income Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Dollars in thousands, except share data)

		For the Three Months Ended June 30,				Ended		
	_	2018		2017		2018		2017
		(Unau	ıdited)			(Unau	ıdited)	
Interest and dividend income:								
Interest on loans receivable	\$	11,053	\$	9,581	\$	21,439	\$	18,172
Interest and dividends on investment securities and FHLB stock	_	330		123		654		325
Total interest and dividend income	_	11,383		9,704		22,093		18,497
Interest expense:								
Interest on certificates of deposit		1,847		1,428		3,597		2,744
Interest on other deposits		199		161		383		311
Interest on borrowings	_	204		32		303		61
Total interest expense	_	2,250		1,621		4,283		3,116
Net interest income		9,133		8,083		17,810		15,381
Provision for loan losses (Note 4)		337		207		431		259
Net interest income after provision for loan losses		8,796		7,876		17,379		15,122
Noninterest income:	_							
Service charges and fees		214		225		437		454
Brokerage commissions		42		168		138		286
Late and prepayment charges		52		235		263		446
Other		216		256		571		456
Total noninterest income		524		884		1,409		1,642
Noninterest expense:								
Compensation and benefits		4,563		3,956		8,918		7,785
Occupancy expense		1,717		1,400		3,208		2,826
Data processing expenses		300		413		708		866
Direct loan expenses		152		184		307		379
Insurance and surety bond premiums		99		79		188		161
Office supplies, telephone and postage		352		282		652		536
FDIC deposit insurance assessment		66		58		134		124
Other operating expenses		1,206		623		2,599		1,414
Total noninterest expense		8,455	-	6,995		16,714		14,091
Income before income taxes	_	865		1,765		2,074		2,673
Provision for income taxes (Note 8)		166		641		434		986
Net income	\$	699	\$	1,124	\$	1,640	\$	1,687
Earnings per share for the period January 1, 2018 to June 30, 2018: (Note 10)	_							
Basic	\$	0.04		N/A	\$	0.09		N/A
Diluted	\$	0.04		N/A	\$	0.09		N/A
	=		_		_			

## Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (In thousands)

	For	For the Three Months Ended June 30,				For the Six Months En June 30,			
		2018		2017		2018		2017	
		(Unau	dited)			(Unau	dited)		
Net income	\$	699	\$	1,124	\$	1,640	\$	1,687	
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on securities available-for-sale:								<u>.</u>	
Unrealized gain (losses)		(5)		115		(174)		24	
Income tax effect		1		(39)		(8)		(9)	
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax		(4)		76		(182)		15	
Pension benefit liability adjustment:									
Net gain (loss)		(31)		_		(65)		(31)	
Income tax effect		11		_		22		11	
Pension liability adjustment, net of tax		(20)				(43)		(20)	
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax		(24)		76		(225)		(5)	
Total comprehensive income	\$	675	\$	1,200	\$	1,415	\$	1,682	

## Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

## (Dollars in thousands, except share data)

	Common Shares	iount	Additional Paid-in Capital	Retained Earnings	ccumulated Other mprehensive Loss	C	allocated Common Stock of ESOP	Total
Balance, December 31, 2016		\$ _	\$ —	\$ 99,242	\$ (6,250)	\$		\$ 92,992
Net income	_	_	_	1,687	_		_	1,687
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_	_	_	_	(5)		_	(5)
Balance, June 30, 2017 (Unaudited)	_	\$	\$ —	\$100,929	\$ (6,255)	\$	_	\$ 94,674
Balance, December 31, 2017	18,463,028	\$ 185	\$ 84,351	\$ 94,855	\$ (7,851)	\$	(6,755)	\$ 164,785
Net income	_	_	_	1,640	_		_	1,640
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax	_	_	_	_	(225)		_	(225)
ESOP shares committed to be released								
(24,126 shares)		 	137				241	378
Balance, June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)	18,463,028	\$ 185	\$ 84,488	\$ 96,495	\$ (8,076)	\$	(6,514)	\$166,578

## Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (In thousands)

		For the Six Months Ende June 30,		
	_	2018		2017
		(Unau	dited)	
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:				
Net income	\$	1,640	\$	1,687
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:				
Amortization of premiums on securities, net		6		7
Loss on sale of loans, net		54		_
Loss on sale of available-for-sale securities		_		6
Gain on sale of other real estate owned		_		_
Provision for loan losses		431		259
Depreciation and amortization		854		803
Deferred income taxes		117		4
ESOP compensation		378		_
Changes in assets and liabilities:				
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable		(15)		(210)
Increase in other assets		(652)		(2,777)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable		99		3
Net increase in other liabilities		690		1,968
Net cash provided by operating activities		3,602		1,750
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:				
Proceeds from redemption of FHLB Stock		_		6,492
Purchases of FHLB Stock		(1,106)		(6,816)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities				20,411
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayments on available-for-sale securities		573		2,622
Proceeds from sales of loans		4,761		_
Net increase in loans		(56,969)		(90,631)
Purchases of premises and equipment		(2,048)		(375)
Net cash used in investing activities		(54,789)		(68,297)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:				
Net increase in deposits		39,270		59,327
Proceeds from advances		21,375		1,567,000
Repayments of advances		(20,000)		1,562,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities		40,645		64,327
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents		(10,542)	_	(2,220)
Cash and Cash Equivalents:		(10,0 .=)		(=,==0)
Beginning		59,724		11,716
Ending	\$	49,182	\$	9,496
Supplemental Disclosures:	Ψ	10,102	Ψ	3,430
Cash paid during the period:  Interest	\$	1101	\$	2 112
	<del></del>	4,184	_	3,113
Income taxes	\$	132	\$	549

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

#### Basis of Presentation and Consolidation:

The unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements of PDL Community Bancorp (the "Company") presented herein have been prepared pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") for quarterly reports on Form 10Q and do not include all of the information and note disclosures required by the U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustments and disclosures considered necessary for the fair presentation of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements have been included. Interim results are not necessarily reflective of the results of the entire year. The accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2017 included in the Company's annual report on Form 10-K.

The unaudited interim Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company, its wholly owned subsidiary Ponce Bank (the "Bank"), and the Bank's wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Bank's subsidiaries consist of PFS Service Corp., which owns some of the Bank's real property, and Ponce De Leon Mortgage Corp., which is a mortgage banking entity. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

#### Reorganization and Stock Offering:

On September 29, 2017, Ponce De Leon Federal Bank reorganized into a two-tier mutual holding company structure with a mid-tier stock holding company. The Company sold 8,308,362 shares of common stock at \$10.00 per share, including 723,751 shares purchased by the Company's Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("ESOP"). In addition, the Company issued 9,545,387 shares to Ponce Bank Mutual Holding Company, the Company's mutual holding company parent (the "MHC") and 609,279 shares to The Ponce De Leon Foundation ("Foundation"), a charitable foundation that was formed in connection with the stock offering and is dedicated to supporting charitable organizations operating in the Bank's local community. A total of 18,463,028 shares of common stock were outstanding following the completion of the stock offering. As a result of the reorganization, the reporting entity changed from Ponce De Leon Federal Bank to PDL Community Bancorp.

The direct costs of the Company's stock offering of \$4,988 were deferred and deducted from the proceeds of the offering.

#### Nature of Operations:

The Bank is a federally chartered savings association headquartered in the Bronx, New York. Ponce De Leon Federal Bank was originally chartered in 1960 as a federally chartered mutual savings and loan association under the name Ponce De Leon Federal Savings and Loan Association. In 1985, the Bank changed its name to "Ponce De Leon Federal Savings Bank." In 1997, the Bank changed its name again to "Ponce De Leon Federal Bank." Upon the completion of its reorganization into the MHC, the assets and liabilities of Ponce De Leon Federal Bank were transferred to and assumed by the Bank, a federally chartered stock savings association, owned 100% by PDL Community Bancorp and known as and conducting business under the name "Ponce Bank." The Bank will continue to be subject to comprehensive regulation and examination by the Office of Comptroller of the Currency (the "OCC").

The Bank's business is conducted through the administrative office and 13 branch offices. The banking offices are located in the Bronx, Manhattan, Queens and Brooklyn, New York and Union City, New Jersey. The primary market area currently consists of the New York City metropolitan area.

The Bank's business primarily consists of taking deposits from the general public and investing those deposits, together with funds generated from operations and borrowings, in mortgage loans, consisting of one-to-four family residential (both investor-owned and owner-occupied), multifamily residential, nonresidential properties and construction and land, and, to a lesser extent, in business and consumer loans. The Bank also invests in securities, which have historically consisted of U.S. government and federal agency securities and securities issued by government-sponsored or owned enterprises, as well as, mortgage-backed securities and Federal Home Loan Bank stock. The Bank offers a variety of deposit accounts, including demand, savings, money markets and certificates of deposit accounts.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The following is a summary of the Company's significant accounting policies:

<u>Use of Estimates</u>: In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial condition, and revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans, the valuation of loans held for sale, the valuation of deferred tax assets and investment securities, and the determination of pension benefit obligations.

<u>Interim Financial Statements</u>: The interim consolidated financial statements at June 30, 2018, and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are unaudited and reflect all normal recurring adjustments that are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, are not necessarily indicative of the results to be achieved for the remainder of the year ending December 31, 2018, or any other period.

<u>Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk</u>: Most of the Bank's activities are with customers located within New York City. Accordingly, the ultimate collectability of a substantial portion of the Bank's loan portfolio is susceptible to changes in the local market conditions. Note 3 discusses the types of securities that the Bank invests in. Notes 4 and 11 discuss the types of lending that the Bank engages in, and other concentrations.

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u>: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand amounts due from banks (including items in process of clearing). For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Bank considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash flows from loans originated by the Bank, interest-bearing deposits in financial institutions, and deposits are reported net.

<u>Securities</u>: Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the date individual investment securities are acquired, and the appropriateness of such classification is reassessed at each statement of financial condition date.

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, if any, are classified as "held to maturity" and recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities, if any, are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized in earnings. Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading, are classified as "available for sale" and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") on at least a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an unrealized loss position, management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss, and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer. Management also assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell, a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment through earnings. For debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split into two components as follows: 1) OTTI related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the consolidated statement of income (loss) and 2) OTTI related to other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income (loss).

The credit loss is defined as the difference between the discounted present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized through earnings.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific-identification method. The sale of a held-to-maturity security within three months of its maturity date or after collection of at least 85% of the principal outstanding at the time the security was acquired is considered a maturity for purposes of classification and disclosure.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

<u>Federal Home Loan Bank Stock</u>: The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (the "FHLB"). Members are required to own a certain amount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors, and may invest in additional amounts. FHLB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income.

<u>Loans Receivable</u>: Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are stated at current unpaid principal balances, net of the allowance for loan losses and including net deferred loan origination fees and costs.

Interest income is accrued based on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest income using the interest method without anticipating prepayments.

A loan is moved to nonaccrual status in accordance with the Bank's policy typically after 90 days of non-payment. The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is generally discontinued at the time the loan becomes 90 days past due unless the loan is well-secured and in process of collection. Consumer loans are typically charged-off no later than 120 days past due. Past due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual status or charged-off if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All nonaccrual loans are considered impaired loans.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual are reversed against interest income. Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash basis or recorded against principal balances only, until qualifying for return to accrual. Cash basis interest recognition is only applied on nonaccrual loans with a sufficient collateral margin to ensure no doubt with respect to the collectability of principal. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and remain current for a period of time (typically six months) and future payments are reasonably assured.

<u>Allowance for Loan Losses</u>: The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management's judgment, should be charged off.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Loans for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings ("TDR") and classified as impaired.

Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Impaired loans are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral, present value of cash flows, or the observable market price of the note. Impairment measurement for all collateral dependent loans, excluding accruing TDR's, is based on the fair value of collateral, less costs to sell, if necessary. A loan is considered collateral dependent if repayment of the loan is expected to be provided solely by the sale or the operation of the underlying collateral.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

When the Bank modifies a loan in a TDR, management evaluates for any possible impairment using either the discounted cash flows method, where the value of the modified loan is based on the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the contractual interest rate of the original loan agreement, or by using the fair value of the collateral less selling costs, if repayment under the modified terms becomes doubtful.

The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors. The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual loss history experienced over a rolling 12 quarter average period. This actual loss experience is supplemented with other economic factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment. These economic factors include consideration of the following: levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations.

When establishing the allowance for loan losses, management categorizes loans into risk categories reflecting individual borrower earnings, liquidity, leverage and cash flow, as well as the nature of underlying collateral. These risk categories and relevant risk characteristics are as follows:

Residential and Multifamily Mortgage Loans: The majority of loans at the Bank are secured by first mortgages. Residential and multifamily mortgage loans are typically underwritten with loan-to-value ratios ranging from 65% to 90%. The primary risks involved in residential mortgages are the borrower's loss of employment, or other significant event, that negatively impacts the source of repayment. Additionally, a serious decline in home values could jeopardize repayment in the event that the underlying collateral needs to be liquidated to pay off the loan.

<u>Nonresidential Mortgage Loans</u>: Nonresidential mortgage loans are primarily secured by commercial buildings, office and industrial buildings, warehouses, small retail shopping centers and various special purpose properties, including hotels, restaurants and nursing homes. These loans are typically underwritten at no more than 75% loan-to-value ratio. Although terms vary, commercial real estate loans generally have amortization periods of 15 to 30 years, as well as balloon payments of 10 to 15 years, and terms which provide that the interest rate is adjusted on a 5 year schedule.

Construction and Land Loans: Construction real estate loans consist of vacant land and property that is in the process of improvement. Repayment of these loans can be dependent on the sale of the property to third parties or the successful completion of the improvements by the builder for the end user. In the event a loan is made on property that is not yet improved for the planned development, there is the risk that government approvals will not be granted or will be delayed. Construction loans also run the risk that improvements will not be completed on time or in accordance with specifications and projected costs. Construction real estate loans generally have terms of six months to two years during the construction period with fixed rates or interest rates based on a designated index.

Business Loans: Business loans are loans for commercial, corporate and business purposes, including issuing letters of credit. These loans are secured by business assets or may be unsecured and repayment is directly dependent on the successful operation of the borrower's business and the borrower's ability to convert the assets to operating revenue. They possess greater risk than most other types of loans because the repayment capacity of the borrower may become inadequate. Business loans generally have terms of five years to seven years or less and interest rates that float in accordance with a designated published index. Substantially all such loans are backed by the personal guarantees of the owners of the business.

<u>Consumer Loans</u>: Consumer loans generally have higher interest rates than mortgage loans. The risk involved in consumer loans is the type and nature of the collateral and, in certain cases, the absence of collateral. Consumer loans include passbook loans and other secured and unsecured loans that have been made for a variety of consumer purposes.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

<u>Loans Held for Sale</u>: Loan sales occur from time to time as part of strategic business or regulatory compliance initiatives. Loans held for sale, including deferred fees and costs, are reported at the lower of cost or fair value as determined by expected bid prices from potential investors. Loans are sold without recourse and servicing released. When a loan is transferred from portfolio to held-for-sale and the fair value is less than cost, a charge-off is recorded against the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent declines in fair value, if any, are charged against earnings.

Transfers of Financial Assets: Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when all of the components meet the definition of a participating interest and when control over the assets has been surrendered. A participating interest generally represents (1) a proportionate (pro rata) ownership interest in an entire financial asset, (2) a relationship where from the date of transfer all cash flows received from the entire financial asset are divided proportionately among the participating interest holders in an amount equal to their share of ownership, (3) the priority of cash flows has certain characteristics, including no reduction in priority, subordination of interest, or recourse to the transferor other than standard representation or warranties, and (4) no party has the right to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset unless all participating interest holders agree to pledge or exchange the entire financial asset. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through either (a) an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity or (b) the ability to unilaterally cause the holder to return specific assets, other than through a clean-up call.

<u>Premises and Equipment</u>: Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is computed and charged to operations using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets as follows:

	Years
Building	39
Building improvements	15 - 39
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment	3 - 10

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the improvements' estimated economic lives or the related lease terms, including extensions expected to be exercised. Gains and losses on dispositions are recognized upon realization. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred and improvements are capitalized. Leasehold improvements in process are not amortized until the assets are placed in operation.

<u>Impairment of Long-Lived Assets</u>: Long-lived assets, including premises and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If impairment is indicated by that review, the asset is written down to its estimated fair value through a charge to noninterest expense.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other Real Estate Owned ("OREO") represents properties acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure or other proceedings. OREO is initially recorded at fair value, less estimated disposal costs, at the date of foreclosure, which establishes a new cost basis. After foreclosure, the properties are held for sale and are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value, at the time of transfer to OREO, is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Properties are evaluated regularly to ensure that the recorded amounts are supported by current fair values and charges against earnings are recorded as necessary to reduce the carrying amount to fair value, less estimated costs to dispose. Costs relating to the development and improvement of the property are capitalized, subject to the limit of fair value of the OREO, while costs relating to holding the property are expensed. Gains or losses are included in operations upon disposal.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

<u>Income Taxes</u>: The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination.

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there are no liabilities recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Income tax returns filed for years before 2014 are no longer subject to income tax examinations by U.S. federal, state or local tax authorities.

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits, if any, would be classified as additional provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of income (loss).

Related Party Transactions: Directors and officers of the Company and their affiliates have been customers of and have had transactions with the Company, and it is expected that such persons will continue to have such transactions in the future. Management believes that all deposit accounts, loans, services and commitments comprising such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other customers who are not directors or officers. In the opinion of management, the transactions with related parties did not involve more than normal risk of collectability, nor favored treatment or terms, nor present other unfavorable features. Note 15 contains details regarding related party transactions.

Employee Benefit Plans: The Company maintains Ponce Bank's 401(K) Plan, the noncontributory defined benefit plan, as well as, the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans (the "SERP's"). The noncontributory defined benefit pension plan was effectively frozen on May 31, 2007. The funding policy is to contribute annually the amounts sufficient to meet the minimum funding standards established by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act ("ERISA") and such additional amounts as determined by management based on actuary recommendations.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan: Compensation expense is recorded as shares are committed to be released with a corresponding credit to unearned ESOP shares at the average fair market value of the shares during the period and the shares become outstanding for earnings per share computations. Compensation expense is recognized ratably over the service period based upon management's estimate of the number of shares expected to be allocated by the ESOP. The difference between the average fair market value and the cost of the shares allocated by the ESOP is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in-capital. Unallocated common shares held by the Company's ESOP are shown as a reduction in stockholders' equity and are excluded from weighted-average common shares outstanding for both basic and diluted earnings per share calculations until they are committed to be released.

<u>Comprehensive Income (Loss)</u>: Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss), which are both recognized as separate components of equity. Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on securities available for sale and unrecognized gains and losses on actuarial loss and prior service cost of the defined benefit plan.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

<u>Loss Contingencies</u>: Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there are any such matters that will have a material effect on the operations and financial position of the Company.

<u>Fair Value of Financial Instruments</u>: Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 12. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect these estimates.

<u>Segment Reporting</u>: While management monitors the revenue streams of the various products and services, the identifiable segments and operations are managed and financial performance is evaluated on a Company-wide basis. Accordingly, all of the financial service operations are considered by management to be aggregate in one reportable operating segment.

<u>Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments</u>: Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, issued to meet customer financing needs. The face amount for these items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

<u>Earnings Per Share ("EPS")</u>: Basic EPS represents net income attributable to common shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period less unallocated ESOP shares. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding, plus the effect of potential dilutive common stock equivalents outstanding during the period.

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements:**

As an emerging growth company ("EGC") as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act, the Company has elected to use the extended transition period to delay the adoption of new or reissued accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to nonpublic companies. As of June 30, 2018, there is no significant difference in the comparability of the consolidated financial statements as a result of this extended transition period.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)", that amended guidance on revenue recognition from contracts with customers. The standard outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers and supersedes most contract revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The core principle of the amended guidance reportedly is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The amended guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within that reporting period, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The Bank's primary source of revenue is interest income on financial assets and income from mortgage banking activities, which are explicitly excluded from the scope of the new guidance. As a result, the adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements. However, the Company will continue to monitor developments and additional guidance up to the effective date of these amendments.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-01, "Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10) Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." The FASB reported that the main objective in developing this new ASU was to enhance the reporting model for financial instruments, to provide users of financial statements with more useful information. The update requires equity investments (except those accounted for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) to be measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net income. It addresses the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values by requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment. The amendment eliminates the requirement for public business entities to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet. It requires public business entities to use the exit price notion when measuring the fair value of financial instruments for disclosure purposes. Financial assets and financial liabilities are to be presented separately by measurement category and form of financial asset and the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale securities should be evaluated with the entity's other deferred tax assets. The amendments in this update are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. The adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on the

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, "Leases (Topic 842)." This ASU requires all lessees to recognize a lease liability and a right-of-use asset, measured at the present value of the future minimum lease payments, at the lease commencement date. Lessor accounting remains largely unchanged under the new guidance. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim reporting periods within that reporting period, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020.

The Company has begun its evaluation of the amended guidance including the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements. To date, the Company has identified its leased office spaces as within the scope of the guidance. The Company currently leases six branches and the new guidance will result in the establishment of a right to use asset and corresponding lease obligations. The Company continues to evaluate the impact of the guidance, including determining whether other contracts exist that are deemed to be in scope and subsequent related accounting standard updates. As such, no conclusions have yet been reached regarding the potential impact of adoption on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, "Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718)." The reported objective of this ASU is to simplify accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. Under the update, all excess tax benefits and tax deficiencies (including tax benefits of dividends on share-based payment awards) should be recognized as income tax expense or benefit in the income statement. The tax effects of exercised or vested awards should be treated as discrete items in the reporting period in which they occur. An entity also should recognize excess tax benefits regardless of whether the benefit reduces taxes payable in the current period. An entity can make an entity-wide accounting policy election to either estimate the number of awards that are expected to vest (current accounting) or account for forfeitures when they occur. Within the statement of cash flows, excess tax benefits should be classified along with other income tax cash flows as an operating activity, and cash paid by an employer when directly withholding shares for tax-withholding purposes should be classified as a financing activity. The amendments in this ASU are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those annual periods, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company expects to apply the amendments in this update by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to equity as of the beginning of the period in which the guidance is adopted, or prospectively, as applicable. The adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, "Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments." This ASU reportedly significantly changes how entities will measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that are not measured at fair value through net income. The standard is to replace today's "incurred loss" approach with an "expected loss" model. The new model, referred to as the current expected credit loss ("CECL") model, is to apply to: (1) financial assets subject to credit losses and measured at amortized cost, and (2) certain off-balance sheet credit exposures. This includes, but is not limited to, loans, leases, held-to-maturity securities, loan commitments and financial guarantees. The CECL model does not apply to available-for-sale ("AFS") debt securities. For AFS debt securities with unrealized losses, entities will measure credit losses in a manner similar to what they do today, except that the losses will be recognized as allowances rather than reductions in the amortized cost of the securities. As a result, entities will recognize improvements to estimated credit losses immediately in earnings rather than as interest income over time, as they do today. The ASU also reportedly simplifies the accounting model for purchased credit-impaired debt, securities and loans. ASU 2016-13 also expands the disclosure requirements regarding an entity's assumptions, models and methods for estimating the allowance for loan and lease losses. In addition, entities will need to disclose the amortized cost balance for each class of financial asset by credit quality indicator, disaggregated by the year of origination. ASU No. 2016-13 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, including interim periods within those fiscal years, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, we will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Entities have to apply the standard's provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of the first reporting period in which the guidance is effective (i.e., modified retrospective approach).

Although early adoption is permitted, the Company does not expect to elect that option. The Company has begun its evaluation of the amended guidance including the potential impact on its consolidated financial statements. As a result of the required change in approach toward determining estimated credit losses from the current "incurred loss" model to one based on estimated cash flows over a loan's contractual life, adjusted for prepayments (a "life of loan" model), the Company expects that the new guidance will result in an increase in the allowance for loan losses, particularly for longer duration loan portfolios. The Company also expects that the new guidance may result in an allowance for debt securities. In both cases, the extent of the change is indeterminable at this time as it will be dependent upon portfolio composition and credit quality at the adoption date, as well as economic conditions and forecasts at that time.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments." This ASU reportedly is intended to reduce diversity in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the statements of cash flows. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years, for public business entities. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019. A retrospective transition method should be applied to each period presented, unless it is impracticable to apply the amendments retrospectively for some of the issues, then the amendments for those issues would be applied prospectively as of the earliest date practicable. The adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-07 "Compensation-Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost." The ASU requires that an employer report the service cost component with other compensation cost arising from services rendered by the pertinent employees during the period. The amendment also requires the components of net benefit cost to be presented separately in the income statement from the service cost component and not within income from operations. ASU 2017-07 is effective for interim and annual reporting for public business entities beginning after December 15, 2017. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The adoption of this update is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08 "Receivables – Non-Refundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20): Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities." The ASU requires premiums on callable debt securities to be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. ASU 2017-08 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 for public business entities. Early adoption is permitted beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal years. As the Company is taking advantage of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards assuming it remains an EGC, it will adopt the amendments in this update beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2020. ASU 2017-08 will not have a material impact on the Company's consolidated financial position, results of operations or disclosures.

In February 2018, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update 2018-02, "Income Statement – Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income." This amendment allows a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. This amendment is effective for years beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company has not elected to adopt this standard as of the date of these consolidated financial statements.

#### Note 2. Restrictions on Cash and Due From Banks

The Bank is required to maintain reserve balances in cash or on deposit with the Federal Reserve Bank, based on a percentage of deposits. The Bank had \$6,819 in cash to cover its minimum reserve requirement of \$6,466 at June 30, 2018, and \$24,334 in cash to cover its minimum reserve requirements of \$23,870 at December 31, 2017, respectively.

#### Note 3. Available-for-Sale Securities

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of available-for-sale securities at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are summarized as follows:

	_					0, 2018 (dited)			
	<del>-</del>	Gross Gros Amortized Unrealized Unreali Cost Gains Losse				Gross realized Losses	Fa	ir Value	
U.S. Government and Federal Agencies	\$	5	24,913	\$	_	\$	(517)	\$	24,396
Mortgage-Backed Securities:									
FHLMC Certificates			_		_		_		_
FNMA Certificates			941		_		(36)		905
GNMA Certificates	_		2,801		42				2,843
	<u>\$</u>	5	28,655	\$	42	\$	(553)	\$	28,144
	_				Decembe	r 31, 20	17		
			nortized Cost	Un	Gross realized Gains	Un	Gross realized Losses	Fa	ir Value
U.S. Government and Federal Agencies	\$	5	24,911	\$	_	\$	(359)	\$	24,552
Mortgage-Backed Securities:									
FHLMC Certificates			_		_		_		_
FNMA Certificates			1,118		_		(15)		1,103
GNMA Certificates			3,205		38		(1)		3,242
	\$	<u>-</u> ا	29,234	\$	38	\$	(375)	\$	28,897
	=			<u> </u>		<u> </u>	(0.0)		20,007

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 3. Available-for-Sale Securities (Continued)

There were no investments classified as held to maturity as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. There were no sales in the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

The following tables present the Company's securities' gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by the length of time the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at June 30, 2018 and at December 31, 2017:

			June 3	30, 2018						
		(Unaudited)								
	Securities With Gross Unrealized Losses									
		12 Months		s or More	Total	Total				
	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss				
U.S. Government and Federal Agencies	<u></u> \$ —	\$ —	\$ 24,396	\$ (517)	\$ 24,396	\$ (517)				
Mortgage-Backed										
FHLMC Certificates	_	_	_	_	_	_				
FNMA Certificates	903	(36)	_	_	903	(36)				
GNMA Certificates	_	_	_	_	_	_				
	\$ 903	\$ (36)	\$ 24,396	\$ (517)	\$ 25,299	\$ (553)				
				er 31, 2017						
				oss Unrealized Lo		m . 1				
	-	12 Months		s or More	Total	Total				
	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss				
U.S. Government and Federal Agencies	<del>\$</del> —	<del>\$</del> —	\$ 24,552	\$ (359)	\$ 24,552	\$ (359)				
Mortgage-Backed										
FHLMC Certificates	_	_	_	_	_	_				
FNMA Certificates	1,094	(15)			1,094	(15)				
	,	\ /								
GNMA Certificates	1,205	(1)			1,205	(1)				

The Company's investment portfolio had 33 investment securities at June 30, 2018 and 33 investment securities at December 31, 2017. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company had 13 and 14 securities, with a gross unrealized loss position. Management reviewed the financial condition of the entities underlying the securities at both June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 and determined that they are not other than temporary because the unrealized losses in those securities relate to market interest rate changes. The Company has the ability to hold them and does not have the intent to sell these securities, and it is not more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell these securities, before recovery of the cost basis. In addition, management also considers the issuers of the securities to be financially sound and believes the Company will receive all contractual principal and interest related to these investments.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 3. Available-for-Sale Securities (Continued)

The following is a summary of maturities of securities at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Amounts are shown by contractual maturity. Because borrowers for mortgage-backed securities have the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment penalties, these securities are not included within the maturity summary.

		Available	0, 2018 e-for-Sale ıdited)	<u> </u>
	Amortized			Fair
		Cost		Value
U.S. Government and Federal Agency Securities:				
Amounts maturing:				
After three months through one year	\$	3,990	\$	3,963
After one year through five years		20,923		20,433
		24,913		24,396
Mortgage-Backed Securities		3,742		3,748
Total	\$	28,655	\$	28,144

			er 31, 201 e-for-Sale	
	A	Amortized Cost		
U.S. Government and Federal Agency Securities:		,		
Amounts maturing:				
After three months through one year	\$	1,990	\$	1,977
After one year through five years		22,921		22,575
		24,911		24,552
Mortgage-Backed Securities		4,323		4,345
Total	\$	29,234	\$	28,897

There were no securities pledged at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

#### **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are summarized as follows:

		June 30, 2018 naudited)	Dec	cember 31, 2017
Mortgage loans:	Ì	ŕ		
1-4 family residences				
Investor-Owned	\$	296,490	\$	287,158
Owner-Occupied		92,208		100,854
Multifamily residences		218,210		188,550
Nonresidential properties		168,788		151,193
Construction and land		72,574		67,240
Nonmortgage loans:				
Business loans		11,698		12,873
Consumer loans		1,027		886
		860,995		808,754
Net deferred loan origination costs		1,182		1,020
Allowance for losses on loans		(11,751)		(11,071)
Loans, net	\$	850,426	\$	798,703

The Company's lending activities are conducted principally in New York City. The Company primarily grants loans secured by real estate to individuals and businesses. While collateral provides assurance as a secondary source of repayment, the Bank ordinarily requires the primary source of repayment to be based on the borrowers' ability to generate continuing cash flows. The Company has established credit policies applicable to each type of lending activity, in which it engages. The Company evaluates the creditworthiness of each customer and, in most cases, extends credit up to 75% of the market value of the collateral at the date of the credit extension, depending on the borrowers' creditworthiness and the type of collateral. The market value of collateral is monitored on an ongoing basis and additional collateral is obtained when warranted. Real estate is the primary form of collateral. Other important forms of collateral are time deposits and marketable securities.

For disclosures related to the allowance for loan losses and credit quality, the Company does not have any disaggregated classes of loans below the segment level.

<u>Credit-Quality Indicators</u>: Internally assigned risk ratings are used as credit-quality indicators, which are reviewed by management on a quarterly basis.

The objectives of the Company's risk-rating system are to provide the Board of Directors and senior management with an objective assessment of the overall quality of the loan portfolio, to promptly and accurately identify loans with well-defined credit weaknesses so that timely action can be taken to minimize credit loss, to identify relevant trends affecting the collectability of the loan portfolio, to isolate potential problem areas and to provide essential information for determining the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

Below are the definitions of the internally assigned risk ratings:

- <u>Strong Pass</u> Loans to new or existing borrowers collateralized at least 90 percent by an unimpaired deposit account at the Company.
- <u>Good Pass</u> A loan to a new or existing borrower in a well-established enterprise in excellent financial condition with strong liquidity and a history of consistently high level of earnings, cash flow and debt service capacity.
- <u>Satisfactory Pass</u> Loan to a new or existing borrower of average strength with acceptable financial condition, satisfactory record of earnings and sufficient historical and projected cash flow to service the debt.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

- <u>Performance Pass</u> Existing loans that evidence strong payment history but document less than average strength, financial condition, record of earnings, or projected cash flows with which to service debt.
- <u>Special Mention</u> Loans in this category are currently protected but show one or more potential weakness and risks which may inadequately protect collectability or borrower's ability to meet repayment terms at some future date if the weakness is not checked or corrected.
- <u>Substandard</u> Loans that are inadequately protected by the repayment capacity of the borrower or the current sound net worth of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans in this category have well defined weaknesses and risks that jeopardize the repayment. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that some loss will be sustained if the deficiencies are not corrected.
- <u>Doubtful</u> Loans that have all the weaknesses of loans classified as "Substandard" with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of current existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.

June 30, 2018

Loans within the top four categories above are considered pass rated, as commonly defined. Risk ratings are assigned as necessary to differentiate risk within the portfolio. Risk ratings are reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised to reflect changes in the borrowers' financial condition and outlook, debt service coverage capability, repayment performance, collateral value and coverage as well as other considerations.

The following tables present credit risk ratings by loan segment as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

			_	(Unaudited)		_	
	1-4 Family	Morte  Multifamily	gage Loans  Nonresidential	Construction and Land	Nonmorts  Business	gage Loans  Consumer	Total Loans
Risk Rating:							
Pass	\$372,656	\$ 217,120	\$ 167,290	\$ 65,862	\$11,010	\$ 1,027	\$834,965
Special mention	6,107	1,090	464	_	688	_	8,349
Substandard	9,935	_	1,034	6,712	_	_	17,681
Doubtful	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Total	\$388,698	\$ 218,210	\$ 168,788	\$ 72,574	\$11,698	\$ 1,027	\$860,995
	<u> </u>		De	ecember 31, 2017			
		Mortg	gage Loans		Nonmort	gage Loans	
	1-4 Family	Multifamily	Nonresidential	Construction and Land	Business	Consumer	Total Loans
Diele Detings							
Risk Rating:							
Pass	\$370,629	\$ 188,030	\$ 148,253	\$ 59,914	\$12,726	\$ 886	\$ 780,438
o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	\$370,629 4,667	\$ 188,030 —	\$ 148,253 —	\$ 59,914 650	\$12,726 —	\$ 886 —	\$ 780,438 5,317
Pass		\$ 188,030 — 520	\$ 148,253 — 2,940	,,-	\$12,726 — 147	\$ 886 — —	
Pass Special mention	4,667	· -	_	650	_	_	5,317

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

An aging analysis of loans, as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, is as follows:

	Current	June 30, 2018   (Unaudited)						Total		naccrual Loans	Over 90 Days Accruing	
Mortgages:												
1-4 Family												
Investor-Owned	\$ 296,138	\$	—	\$	352	\$	_	\$296,490	\$	1,307	\$	_
Owner-Occupied	91,257		_		_		951	92,208		3,488		_
Multifamily	217,906		_		304		_	218,210		_		_
Nonresidential properties	167,902		_		403		483	168,788		748		_
Construction and land	72,574		_		_		_	72,574		1,111		_
Nonmortgage Loans:												
Business	11,401		297		_		_	11,698		_		—
Consumer	1,027		_		_		_	1,027		_		_
Total	\$858,205	\$	297	\$	1,059	\$	1,434	\$860,995	\$	6,654	\$	_
			ıys		60-89 Days	90	er 31, 2012 Over Days			naccrual	90 1	ver Days
Mortgages:	Current	Past	Due	Pa	st Due_	Pa	st Due_	Total		Loans	Acci	ruing
1-4 Family												
Investor-Owned	\$ 285,485	\$ 1	201	\$		\$	472	\$287,158	\$	2,178	\$	7
Owner-Occupied	96,878	ΨΙ	585	Ψ		Ψ	3,391	100,854	Ψ	5,317	Ψ	
Multifamily	188,504		46					188,550		521		
Nonresidential properties	149,300		11				1,882	151,193		2,170		_
Construction and land	67,240						1,002	67,240		1,075		
Nonmortgage Loans:	07,240							07,240		1,073		
Business	12,583		239				51	12,873		147		
Consumer	886		233				31	886		14/		
Consumer	\$800,876		,082	\$		\$	5,796	\$808,754	\$	11,408	\$	7

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following schedules detail the composition of the allowance for loan losses and the related recorded investment in loans as of June 30, 2018, 2017 and December 31, 2017:

							For the Six M	onth	s Ended Jui	1e 30,	2018					
				Mo	ortgage Lo	ans		(Una	audited)		Nonmo Loa		ge			Total
	1-4 Family Investor Owned		1-4 Family Owner Occupied	Mu	ıltifamily	No	nresidential		nstruction nd Land	Bı	ısiness	<u>Co</u>	nsumer	Unallo	ocated_	For the Period
Allowances for loan losses:																
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 3,716	\$	1,402	\$	3,109	\$	1,424	\$	1,205	\$	209	\$	6	\$	_	\$ 11,071
Provision charged to expense	(30)		(312)		531		250		86		(94)		_		_	431
Losses charged-off	_		_		_		_		_		(18)		_		_	(18)
Recoveries	1		175				5				83		3			267
Balance, end of period	\$ 3,687	\$	1,265	\$	3,640	\$	1,679	\$	1,291	\$	180	\$	9	\$		\$ 11,751
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 310	\$	297	\$		\$	36	\$		\$		\$		\$	_	\$ 643
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	3,377		968		3,640		1,643		1,291		180		9		_	11,108
Unallocated																
Total	\$ 3,687	\$	1,265	\$	3,640	\$	1,679	\$	1,291	\$	180	\$	9	\$		\$ 11,751
Loans:																
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$ 7,014	\$	7,399	\$	_	\$	2,207	\$	1,111	\$	421	\$	_	\$	_	\$ 18,152
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	289,476		84,809	2	218,210		166,581		71,463		11,277		1,027			842,843
Total	\$296,490	\$	92,208	\$ 2	218,210	\$	168,788	\$	72,574	\$	11,698	\$	1,027	\$		\$860,995
						F	or the Three	Mont	ths Ended J	une 3	0, 2018					
								(Una	audited)							
				Mo	ortgage Lo	ans		,	,	I	Nonmortg	age I	Loans			Total
	1-4 Family Investor Owned		1-4 Family Owner Occupied	Mı	ıltifamily	No	onresidential		nstruction nd Land	Bı	ısiness	Co	nsumer	<u>Unall</u>	ocated	For the Period
All																
Allowances for loan losses:	ф <u>э</u> соо	ф	1 270	ď	2.205	ď	1 517	¢	1 212	ď	220	ď	0	ď		¢ 11 400
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 3,689	\$	1,370	\$	3,385	\$	1,517	\$	1,212	\$	228	\$	8	\$	_	\$ 11,409
Provision charged to expense	(3)		(107)		255		160		79		(46)		(1)		_	337
Losses charged-off			_				_				(13)		_		_	(13)
Recoveries	1	_	2				2	_			11		2			18
Balance, end of period	\$ 3,687	\$	1,265	\$	3,640	\$	1,679	\$	1,291	\$	180	\$	9	\$		\$ 11,751

## **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

							1	For the Six M	onth	s Ended Jun	e 30,	2017						
					Mo	rtgage Loa	ne		(Una	audited)	1	Nonmortga	ngo I a	nanc				Total
	Iı	1-4 Family ovestor Owned	(	1-4 Family Owner ccupied		ltifamily		nresidential		nstruction nd Land		usiness	•	nsumer	Unal	llocated		For the Period
Allowances for loan losses:																		
Balance, beginning of period	\$	3,147	\$	1,804	\$	2,705	\$	1,320	\$	615	\$	597	\$	17	\$	_	\$	10,205
Provision charged to expense		379		(321)		282		414		138		(619)		(14)		_		259
Losses charged-off		_		_		_		_		_		(34)		_		_		(34)
Recoveries		10				1		5				204		5				225
Balance, end of period	\$	3,536	\$	1,483	\$	2,988	\$	1,739	\$	753	\$	148	\$	8	\$		\$	10,655
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$	524	\$	401	\$		\$	258	\$		\$		\$	_	\$	_	\$	1,183
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment		3,012		1,082		2,988		1,481		753		148		8		_		9,472
Unallocated		_		_		_		_		_		_		_		_		_
Total	\$	3,536	\$	1,483	\$	2,988	\$	1,739	\$	753	\$	148	\$	8	\$		\$	10,655
Loans:									_									
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment Ending balance: collectively	\$	8,869	\$	8,712	\$	_	\$	5,661	\$	1,008	\$	529	\$	_	\$	_	\$	24,779
evaluated for impairment	2	48,120		91,189	1	72,167		150,009		41,108		14,125		850		_	7	717,568
Total	_	256,989	_	99,901	_	72,167	\$	155,670	\$	42,116	_	14,654	\$	850	\$		_	742,347
	_						F	or the Three		ths Ended Ja	une 3	0, 2017						
	_				M	ortgage Lo	oans		(OII			Nonmortg	age L	oans				Total
		1-4 Family Investor Owned	(	1-4 Family Owner Occupied	M	ultifamily	No	onresidential		onstruction and Land	В	usiness	Cor	nsumer	Una	llocated		or the Period
Allowances for loan losses:																		
Balance, beginning of period	\$	3,181	\$	, -	\$	2,800	\$	1,568	\$	672	\$	115	\$	9	\$	296	\$	10,370
Provision charged to expense		350		(246)		188		169		81		(33)		(6)		(296)		207
Losses charged-off		_		_		_		_		_		(24)		_				(24)
Recoveries	_	5				_		2		_		90		5				102
Balance, end of period	\$	3,536	\$	1,483	\$	2,988	\$	1,739	\$	753	\$	148	\$	8	\$		\$	10,655

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

	For the Year Ended December 31, 2017																	
					Mo	rtgage Lo	nns			_		Nonmortg	age L	oans				Total
	I	1-4 Family nvestor Owned	(	1-4 Family Owner ccupied	Mu	ltifamily	No	nresidential		nstruction nd Land	В	usiness	Con	ısumer	Unal	located		For the Period
Allowances for loan losses:																		
Balance, beginning of year	\$	3,147	\$	1,804	\$	2,705	\$	1,320	\$	615	\$	597	\$	17	\$		\$	10,205
Provision charged to expense		544		(578)		402		95		588		676		(11)		_		1,716
Losses charged-off		_		_		_		_		_		(1,423)		(6)		_		(1,429)
Recoveries		25		176		2		9		2		359		6		_		579
Balance, end of year	\$	3,716	\$	1,402	\$	3,109	\$	1,424	\$	1,205	\$	209	\$	6	\$		\$	11,071
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$	506	\$	375	\$	_	\$	39	\$		\$	2	\$	_	\$	_	\$	922
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment		3,210		1,027		3,109		1,385		1,205		207		6		_		10,149
Unallocated		_		_		_		_				_		_		_		_
Total	\$	3,716	\$	1,402	\$	3,109	\$	1,424	\$	1,205	\$	209	\$	6	\$	_	\$	11,071
Loans:	_		_						_		_		_				_	
Ending balance: individually evaluated for impairment	\$	8,738	\$	10,074	\$	520	\$	4,128	\$	1,075	\$	625	\$	_	\$	_	\$	25,160
Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impairment	2	278,420		90,780	1	88,030		147,065		66,165		12,248		886		_		783,594
Total	\$ 2	287,158	\$1	.00,854	\$ 1	88,550	\$	151,193	\$	67,240	\$	12,873	\$	886	\$		\$	808,754

Loans are considered impaired when current information and events indicate all amounts due may not be collectable according to the contractual terms of the related loan agreements. Impaired loans, including TDR's, are identified by applying normal loan review procedures in accordance with the Allowance for Loan Loss methodology. Management periodically assesses loans to determine whether impairment exists. Any loan that is, or will potentially be, no longer performing in accordance with the terms of the original loan contract is evaluated to determine impairment.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The following information relates to impaired loans as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 and for the year ended December 31, 2017:

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018	Unpaid Contractual Principal Balance	Recorded Investment With No Allowance	Recorded Investment With Allowance	Total Recorded Investment	Related Allowance	Average Recorded Investment	Interest Income Recognized on Cash Basis
(Unaudited)							
Mortgages:							
1-4 Family	\$ 15,597	\$ 7,787	\$ 6,626	\$ 14,413	\$ 607	\$ 17,101	\$ 371
Multifamily						104	_
Nonresidential properties	2,421	1,719	488	2,207	36	3,753	71
Construction and land	1,321	1,111	_	1,111		1,073	_
Nonmortgage Loans:							
Business	464	421	_	421	_	515	12
Consumer	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Total	\$ 19,803	\$ 11,038	\$ 7,114	\$ 18,152	\$ 643	\$ 22,546	\$ 454
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2017	Unpaid Contractual Principal Balance	Recorded Investment With No Allowance	Recorded Investment With Allowance	Total Recorded Investment	Related Allowance	Average Recorded Investment	Interest Income Recognized on Cash Basis
(Unaudited)							
Mortgages:							
1-4 Family	\$ 18,941	\$ 8,346	\$ 9,235	\$ 17,581	\$ 925	\$ 18,201	\$ 422
Multifamily	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Nonresidential properties	6,317	3,134	2,527	5,661	258	6,319	141
Construction and land	1,124	1,008	_	1,008	_	1,028	<u> </u>
Nonmortgage Loans:							
Business	571	529	_	529	_	612	8
Consumer	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Total	\$ 26,953	\$ 13,017	\$ 11,762	\$ 24,779	\$ 1,183	\$ 26,160	\$ 571
December 31, 2017	Unpaid Contractual Principal Balance	Recorded Investment With No Allowance	Recorded Investment With Allowance	Total Recorded Investment	Related Allowance	Average Recorded Investment	Interest Income Recognized on Cash Basis
Mortgages:	Dalance	7 Miowanec	7 mowanec	mvestment	Miowance	mvestment	on Cash Dasis
1-4 Family	\$ 20,036	\$ 10,651	\$ 8,161	\$ 18,812	\$ 506	\$ 18,512	\$ 890
Multifamily	533	520	_	520	375	166	_
Nonresidential properties	4,729	3,633	495	4,128	_	5,231	166
Construction and land	1,233	1,075	_	1,075	39	1,042	_
Nonmortgage Loans:	,	,		,		,-	
Business	667	529	96	625	2	594	24
Consumer	_	_	_	_	_	_	_
Total	\$ 27,198	\$ 16,408	\$ 8,752	\$ 25,160	\$ 922	\$ 25,545	\$ 1,080

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 4. Loans Receivable and Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)

The loan portfolio also includes certain loans that have been modified in a TDR. Under applicable standards, TDRs occur when a creditor, for economic or legal reasons related to a debtor's financial condition, grants a concession to the debtor that it would not otherwise consider, unless it results in a delay in payment that is insignificant. These concessions could include a reduction of interest rate on the loan, payment and maturity extensions, forbearance, or other actions intended to maximize collections. When a loan is modified in a TDR, management evaluates for any possible impairment using either the discounted cash flows method, where the value of the modified loan is based on the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the contractual interest rate of the original loan agreement, or by using the fair value of the collateral less selling costs if repayment under the modified terms becomes doubtful. If management determines that the value of the modified loan in a TDR is less than the recorded investment in the loan, impairment is recognized through a specific allowance estimate or charge-off to the allowance for loan losses.

As of and for the six months ended June 30, 2018, there were no loans restructured as a TDR. As of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, there was one loan restructured as a TDR.

All TDDs with a payment default

	L Six Month	oans Res is Ended	within 12 mon modificatio	ths fol	lowing the			
	Number of Loans	]	Pre- odification Recorded Balance	]	Post- Modification Recorded Balance	Number of Loans		Balance of Loans at the Time of Default
Mortgages:								
1-4 Family	_	\$	_	\$	_	1	\$	175
Total		\$	_	\$		1	\$	175
Combination of rate, maturity, other		\$		\$		1	\$	175
Total		\$		\$		1	\$	175

		estructured During ed December 31, 20		All TDRs with a within 12 mont modif	hs foll	owing the
	Number of Loans	 Pre- Modification Recorded Balance	Post- Modification Recorded Balance	Number of Loans		Balance of Loans at the Time of Default
Mortgages:		 				
1-4 Family	1	\$ 176	\$ 176		\$	
Total	1	\$ 176	\$ 176		\$	
Combination of rate, maturity, other	1	\$ 176	\$ 176		\$	
Total	1	\$ 176	\$ 176		\$	

At June 30, 2018, there were 43 troubled debt restructured loans, included in impaired loans, of \$15,210. At December 31, 2017, there were 49 troubled debt restructured loans, included in impaired loans, of \$18,371. There were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans have been modified in a troubled debt restructuring. The financial impact from the concessions made represents specific impairment reserves on these loans, which aggregated \$643 and \$921 at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 5. Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 is as follows:

	 June 30, 2018 Unaudited)	De	ecember 31, 2017
Land	\$ 3,979	\$	3,979
Buildings and improvements	15,972		15,972
Leasehold improvements	21,790		20,973
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	6,106		4,875
	 47,847		45,799
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization	(19,481)		(18,627)
	\$ 28,366	\$	27,172

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to \$437 and \$399 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and \$854 and \$803 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively and are included in occupancy expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Our leasehold improvements increased by \$817, to \$21,790 at June 30, 2018 evidencing the investments beginning to be made in branch and other delivery vehicles. Equipment also increased by \$1,231, to \$6,106 at June 30, 2018, indicative of our purchases of new ATMs that are being installed in our branches.

## Note 6. Deposits

Deposits at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are summarized as follows:

		June 30, 2018	De	cember 31, 2017
	(U	naudited)		
Demand	\$	108,550	\$	103,001
Interest-bearing deposits:				
NOW/IOLA accounts		26,711		27,758
Money market accounts		58,612		46,497
Savings accounts		124,578		126,668
Total savings, NOW and money market		209,901		200,923
Certificates of deposit of \$250K or more		82,928		80,300
All other certificates of deposit		351,876		329,761
Total certificates of deposit		434,804		410,061
Total interest-bearing deposits		644,705		610,984
Total deposits	\$	753,255	\$	713,985

At June 30, 2018, scheduled maturities of certificates of deposit were as follows:

<u>June 30, </u>		
2019	\$	186,319
2020		88,075
2021		88,164
2022		60,493
2023		11,753
	\$	434,804
	<del></del>	

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 6. Deposits (Continued)

Overdrawn deposit accounts that have been reclassified to loans amounted to \$198 and \$174 as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

#### Note 7. Borrowings

<u>FHLB Advances</u>: The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. At June 30, 2018, the Bank had the ability to borrow from the FHLB based on a certain percentage of the value of the Bank's qualified collateral, as defined in the FHLB Statement of Credit Policy, at the time of the borrowing. In accordance with an agreement with the FHLB, the qualified collateral must be free and clear of liens, pledges and encumbrances.

The Bank had \$37,775 and \$16,400 of outstanding advances from the FHLB on term basis and an overnight line of credit basis at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. The Bank also had a guarantee from the FHLB through a standby letter of credit of \$4,304 and \$6,614 at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. Additionally, the Bank had an unsecured fed funds line in the amount of \$25,000 with a correspondent bank at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, of which \$0 and \$20,000 were outstanding as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Borrowed funds at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 consist of the following and are summarized by maturity and call date below:

		ne 30, 'naudited)			De	cember 31, 2017	
	heduled aturity	leemable Call Date	Weighted Average Rate	cheduled Aaturity		deemable Call Date	Weighted Average Rate
Correspondent Bank Overnight line of credit		,	· <u> </u>				
advance	\$ _	\$ _	—%	\$ 20,000	\$	20,000	1.64%
FHLB Term advances ending June 30:							
2020	1,400	1,400	2.11	1,400		1,400	2.11
2021	3,000	3,000	1.84	3,000		3,000	1.84
2022	5,000	5,000	1.97	5,000		5,000	1.97
2023	28,375	28,375	2.82	7,000		7,000	2.12
	\$ 37,775	\$ 37,775	2.60%	\$ 36,400	\$	36,400	1.81%

Interest expense on advances totaled \$204 and \$32 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and \$302 and \$61 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Bank has eligible collateral of approximately \$71,439 and \$66,254 in mortgage loans available to secure advances from the FHLB.

<u>Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase</u>: At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Bank had the ability to borrow up to \$25,000 under repurchase agreements with three brokers. The Bank had no securities sold under repurchase agreements with brokers as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Interest expense on securities sold under repurchase agreements totaled \$0 and \$0 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 consists of the following:

	For the Three Months Ended June 30,			For the Six Months Endo June 30,			Ended	
		2018		2017		2018		2017
		(Unau	dited)			(Unau	dited)	
Federal:								
Current	\$	110	\$	624	\$	195	\$	881
Deferred		60		23		190		132
		170		647		385		1,013
State and local:								
Current		48		56		121		102
Deferred		(252)		(181)		(356)		(380)
		(204)		(125)		(235)		(278)
Changes in valuation allowance		200		119		284		251
Provision for income taxes	\$	166	\$	641	\$	434	\$	986

Total income tax expense differed from the amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate of 21% and 34% for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, to income before income taxes as a result of the following:

	 For the Three Months Ended June 30,			For the Six Months Ended June 3			
	 2018		2017		2018		2017
	(Unau	dited)			(Unau	dited)	
Income tax, at federal rate	\$ 182	\$	600	\$	436	\$	909
State and local tax, net of federal taxes	(160)		(91)		(185)		(174)
Valuation allowance, net of the federal benefit	200		132		284		251
Other	(56)		_		(101)		_
	\$ 166	\$	641	\$	434	\$	986

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. Government signed into law the "Tax Cuts and Jobs Act" (the "Tax Act") which, starting in 2018, reduced the Company's corporate income tax rate from 34% to 21%, but eliminates or increases certain permanent differences.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 ("SAB 118") to address any uncertainty or diversity of views in practice in accounting for the income tax effects of the Tax Act in situations where a registrant does not have the necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed in reasonable detail to complete this accounting in the reporting period that includes the enactment date. SAB 118 allows for a measurement period, not to extend beyond one year from the Tax Act's enactment date, to complete the necessary accounting.

Our annualized estimated effective tax rate (AETR) for the three and six months period ended June 30, 2018 reflects our assumption that pre-tax income for the period is proportional to annual pre-tax income. Our AETR may change in future periods as we revise our estimate of annual pre-tax income.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 8. Income Taxes (Continued)

Management maintains a valuation allowance against its net New York State and New York City deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will not be realized. The valuation allowance increased by \$200 and \$284 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, respectively. Management has determined that it is not required to establish a valuation allowance against any other deferred tax assets since it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be fully utilized in future periods. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, management considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax liabilities, the level of historical taxable income, and the projected future taxable income over the periods that the temporary differences comprising the deferred tax assets will be deductible.

At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, there are no unrecognized tax benefits recorded. It is not expected that the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase in the next twelve months. Interest and penalties are recognized on unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax, New York State income tax, New Jersey income tax, and New York City income tax. The Company is no longer subject to examination by taxing authorities for years before 2014.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are presented below:

		At June 30, 2018 Unaudited)	At	December 31, 2017
Deferred tax assets:	,	,		
Allowance for losses on loans	\$	3,639	\$	3,444
Pension obligations		2,424		2,402
Interest on nonaccrual loans		46		415
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities		64		72
Amortization of intangible assets		111		120
Deferred rent payable		170		194
Net operating losses		2,809		2,444
Charitable contribution carryforward		1,772		1,840
Other		253		162
Total gross deferred tax assets		11,288	,	11,093
Deferred tax liabilities:			-	,
Cumulative contribution in excess of net periodic				
benefit costs, net		3,113		3,134
Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment		601		601
Deferred loan fees		366		317
Other		5		18
Total gross deferred tax liabilities		4,085		4,070
Valuation allowance	<u>-                                    </u>	3,398	-	3,114
Net deferred tax assets	\$	3,805	\$	3,909

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 9. Compensation and Benefit Plans

#### **Defined Benefit Plan:**

Effective January 1, 2007, the noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the "Old Pension Plan") of the Company was frozen and replaced with a qualified defined contribution plan (the "401(k) Plan") as noted in more detail below. The Old Pension Plan covered substantially all employees. Employees were eligible to participate after one year of service. Normal retirement age was 65, with an early retirement provided for at age 55. The Old Pension Plan was effectively frozen on May 31, 2007 (the curtailment date) and this resulted in an actuarial reassessment of the Old Pension Plan's future estimated obligations. All participants that are presently vested with the Old Pension Plan will remain in the Old Pension Plan and will receive the full accrued benefit, as defined, upon retirement, in accordance with the plan document.

The following table sets forth the Old Pension Plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 using a measurement date as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively:

	_	June 30, 2018		December 31, 2017
Projected benefit obligation	\$	(Unaudited) (15,802)	\$	(15,883)
- ·	Ф	14,564	Ф	· · · · · ·
Fair value of plan assets Funded status	<u></u>		<u>ф</u>	14,732
	\$	(1,238)	\$	(1,151)
Accumulated benefit obligation	<u>\$</u>	(15,802)	\$	(15,883)
	_	June 30, 2018		December 31, 2017
		(Unaudited)		
<u>Changes in benefit obligation:</u>				
Beginning of period	\$	15,883	\$	14,142
Service cost		20		39
Interest cost		271		581
2017 interest rate change		_		1,338
2017 mortality change		<del>-</del>		1,906
(Gain)/ Loss		3		(1,345)
Administrative cost		(20)		(39)
Benefits paid		(355)		(739)
End of period	<u>\$</u>	15,802	\$	15,883
		June 30, 2018		December 31, 2017
		(Unaudited)		2017
Changes in plan assets:		(Onauditeu)		
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of period	\$	14,732	\$	15,038
Actual return on plan assets		207		472
Employer contributions		_		_
Plan participant contributions		_		_
Benefits paid		(355)		(739)
Administrative expenses paid		(20)		(39)
Fair value of plan assets, end of period	\$	14,564	\$	14,732
30				

#### **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 9. Compensation and Benefit Plans (Continued)

Pretax amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss, which will be amortized into net periodic benefit cost over the coming years, consisted of the following components at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

	June 30,		December 31,
	 2018	2017	
	(Unaudited)		
Net loss	\$ (11,288)	\$	(11,224)

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

	For	For the Six Months Ended June 30				
	2	2018		2017		
		(Unau	dited)			
Service cost	\$	20	\$	20		
Interest cost		271		291		
Expected return on plan assets		(430)		(420)		
Amortization of prior service cost		13		13		
Amortization of (gain)/loss		149		117		
Net periodic benefit cost	\$	23	\$	21		

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net benefit obligations consisted of the following as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

	June 30, 2018	December 31, 2017
	(Unaudited)	
Discount rate	3.50%	3.50%
Rate of compensation increase	0.00%	0.00%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net benefit cost consisted of the following for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:

	June 30,	June 30,
	2018	2017
	(Una	udited)
Discount rate	3.50%	4.25%
Rate of compensation increase	0.00%	0.00%
Expected long-term rate of return on assets	6.00%	6.00%

The expected rate of return on plan assets is estimated based on the plan's historical performance of return on assets.

The investment policy for plan assets is to manage the portfolio to preserve principal and liquidity while maximizing the return on the plan's investment portfolio through the full investment of available funds. Plan assets are currently maintained in a guaranteed deposit account with Prudential Retirement Insurance and Annuity Company, earning interest at rates that are determined at the beginning of each year.

#### **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 9. Compensation and Benefit Plans (Continued)

Pension assets consist solely of funds on deposit in a guaranteed deposit account. The fair value of the pension plan assets at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 was \$14,565 and \$14,696, respectively.

The guaranteed deposit account is valued at fair value by discounting the related cash flows based on current yields of similar instruments with comparable durations considering the creditworthiness of the issuer. Such fair value measurement is considered a Level 3 measurement.

Employer contributions and benefit payments for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

	Jun	e 30,		June 30,
	20	18		2017
		(Unau	ıdited)	
Employer contributions	\$		\$	<u> </u>
Benefits paid	\$	355	\$	184

Employee benefit payments expected to be paid in the future are as follows:

As of June 30, 2018	
2018	\$ 380
2019	736
2020	714
2021	695
2022	700
Thereafter	3,307
	\$ 6,532

#### 401(k) Plan:

On January 1, 2007, a qualified defined contribution retirement plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code was adopted. The 401(k) Plan also qualifies under the Internal Revenue Service safe harbor provisions, as defined. Employees are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan after completing one year of service. The 401(k) Plan provides for elective employee/participant deferrals of income. Discretionary matching, profit-sharing, and safe harbor contributions, not to exceed 4% of employee compensation and profit-sharing contributions may be provided. Contributions for the three and six months June 30, 2018 and 2017, if any, were not material to the consolidated financial statements.

#### Employee Stock Ownership Plan:

In connection with the reorganization, the Company established an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for the exclusive benefit of eligible employees. The ESOP borrowed \$7,238 from the Company sufficient to purchase 723,751 shares (approximately 3.92% of the common stock sold in the stock offering). The loan is secured by the shares purchased and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from contributions made by the Bank and dividends received by the ESOP. Contributions will be applied to repay interest on the loan first, and then the remainder will be applied to principal. The loan is expected to be repaid over a period of 15 years. Shares purchased with the loan proceeds are held by the trustee in a suspense account for allocation among participants as the loan is repaid.

Contributions to the ESOP and shares released from the suspense account are allocated among participants in proportion to their compensation, relative to total compensation of all active participants, subject to applicable regulations.

#### **Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements**

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 9. Compensation and Benefit Plans (Continued)

Contributions to the ESOP are to be sufficient to pay principal and interest currently due under the loan agreement. As shares are committed to be released from collateral, compensation expense equal to the average market price of the shares for the respective period are recognized, and the shares become outstanding for earnings per share computations.

A summary of the ESOP shares is as follows:

		ne 30, 2018 naudited)	December	31, 2017
Shares committed-to-be released	(3	24,126		48,250
Shares to be allocated to participants		48,250		_
Unallocated shares		651,375		675,501
Total		723,751		723,751
Fair value of unearned shares	\$	10,233	\$	10,254

At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had \$6,712 outstanding of funds borrowed for the ESOP. We recognized \$201 and \$378 in compensation expense and \$47 and \$95 in interest expense, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and none for three and six months ended June 30, 2017.

#### Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan:

The Company maintains a non-qualified supplemental executive retirement plan ("SERP") for the benefit of one key executive. The SERP expense recognized in the books for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018, were not material to the consolidated financial statements.

#### Note 10. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share data is not applicable for the period ended June 30, 2017 because the Company has not yet been formed and had no shares outstanding at a Company or Bank level.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the number of shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per common share:

	For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018		For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018	
	(Unaudited)			
Net income for the period	\$ 699	\$	1,640	
Shares Outstanding for basic EPS:				
Weighted average shares outstanding:	18,463,028		18,463,028	
Less: Weighted average unallocated Employee Stock Ownership				
Plan (ESOP) shares:	663,305		687,607	
Basic weighted shares outstanding	17,799,723		17,775,421	
Basic earnings per share	\$ 0.04	\$	0.09	
Dilutive potential common shares:	_		_	
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding	 17,799,723		17,775,421	
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 0.04	\$	0.09	

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 11. Commitments, Contingencies and Credit Risk

<u>Financial Instruments With Off-Balance-Sheet Risk</u>: In the normal course of business, financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk may be used to meet the financing needs of customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk and interest rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized on the consolidated statements of financial condition. The contractual amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement in particular classes of financial instruments.

The contractual amounts of commitments to extend credit represent the amounts of potential accounting loss should the contract be fully drawn upon, the customer default, and the value of any existing collateral become worthless. The same credit policies are used in making commitments and contractual obligations as for on-balance-sheet instruments. Financial instruments whose contractual amounts represent credit risk at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as follows:

	 June 30, 2018	December 31, 2017	
	(Unaudited)		
Commitments to grant mortgage loans	\$ 54,677	\$ 54,423	
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit	43,247	33,641	
Standby letters of credit	4,424	6,734	
	\$ 102,348	\$ 94,798	

<u>Commitments to Grant Mortgage Loans</u>: Commitments to grant mortgage loans are agreements to lend to a customer as long as all terms and conditions are met as established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses, and may require payment of a fee by the borrower. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. Each customer's creditworthiness is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary upon extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies, but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, residential real estate and income-producing commercial properties. Material losses are not anticipated as a result of these transactions.

<u>Unfunded Commitments Under Lines of Credit</u>: Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection agreements are commitments for possible future extension of credit to existing customers. These lines of credit are uncollateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and, ultimately, may not be drawn upon to the total extent to which the Company is committed.

<u>Standby Letters of Credit</u>: Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third party. These guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. Collateral held varies as specified above and is required in instances deem necessary.

<u>Concentration by Geographic Location</u>: Loans, commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit have been granted to customers who are located primarily in New York City. Generally, such loans most often are secured by one-to-four family residences. The loans are expected to be repaid from the borrowers' cash flows.

<u>Lease Commitments</u>: At June 30, 2018, there are noncancelable operating leases for office space that expire on various dates through 2031. One such lease contains an escalation clause providing for increased rental based primarily on increases in real estate taxes. Net rental expenses under operating leases, included in occupancy expense, totaled \$341 and \$354 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Net rental expenses under operating leases, included in occupancy expense, totaled \$746 and \$708 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 11. Commitments, Contingencies and Credit Risk (Continued)

The projected minimum rental payments under the terms of the leases at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

	 June 30,
	(Unaudited)
2018	\$ 682
2019	1,076
2020	1,107
2021	1,140
2022	1,043
Thereafter	6,671
	\$ 11,719

<u>Legal Matters</u>: The Company is involved in various legal proceedings which have arisen in the normal course of business. Management believes that resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

#### Note 12. Fair Value

The following fair value hierarchy is used based on the lowest level of input significant to the fair value measurement. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values:

- Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.
- Level 2 Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.
- Level 3 Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value:

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents, Accrued Interest Receivable, Advance Payments by Borrowers for Taxes and Insurance, and Accrued Interest Payable</u>: The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value. These assets and liabilities were not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

<u>Available-for-Sale Securities</u>: These financial instruments are recorded at fair value in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis. Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. If quoted prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models (e.g., matrix pricing) or quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics and are classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy. Examples of such instruments include government agency bonds and mortgage-backed securities. Level 3 securities are securities for which significant unobservable inputs are utilized. There were no changes in valuation techniques used to measure similar assets during the period.

<u>FHLB Stock</u>: The carrying value of FHLB stock approximates fair value since the Bank can redeem such stock with FHLB at cost. As a member of the FHLB, we are required to purchase this stock, which we carry at cost and classify as restricted equity securities.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 12. Fair Value (Continued)

<u>Loans</u>: For variable rate loans, which reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, carrying values are a reasonable estimate of fair values, adjusted for credit losses inherent in the portfolios. The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated by discounting the future cash flows using estimated market rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities, adjusted for credit losses inherent in the portfolios. Impaired loans are valued using a present value discounted cash flow method, or the fair value of the collateral. Loans are not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

<u>Loans Held for Sale</u>: Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or fair value. The fair value of loans held for sale is determined from actual bids from bona fide investors. These assets are classified as Level 2.

Other Real Estate Owned: Other real estate owned represents real estate acquired through foreclosure, and is recorded at fair value less estimated disposal costs on a nonrecurring basis. Fair value is based upon independent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management's estimation of the value of the collateral. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the asset is classified as Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the asset is classified as Level 3.

<u>Deposits</u>: The fair values of demand deposits, savings, NOW and money market accounts equal their carrying amounts, which represent the amounts payable on demand at the reporting date. Fair values for fixed-term, fixed-rate certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies market interest rates on certificates of deposit to a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on such deposits. Deposits are not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

Advances From the Federal Home Loan Bank: The fair value of the advances is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies current market-based FHLB interest rates for advances of similar maturity to a schedule of maturities of such advances. These borrowings are not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

<u>Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments</u>: Fair values for off-balance-sheet instruments (lending commitments and standby letters of credit) are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit standing. Off-balance-sheet instruments are not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.

The following tables detail the assets that are carried at fair value and measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and indicate the level within the fair value hierarchy utilized to determine the fair value:

				_	(U	ne 30, 2018 naudited)		
Description	_	Total	Lev	el 1		Level 2	Le	vel 3
Available-for-Sale Securities:								
U.S. government and federal agencies	\$	24,396	\$	_	\$	24,396	\$	_
Mortgage-Backed Securities:								
FNMA Certificates		905		_		905		_
GNMA Certificates		2,843		_		2,843		_
	\$	28,144	\$	_	\$	28,144	\$	_
						nber 31, 2017		
<b>Description</b>		Total	Lev	el 1		nber 31, 2017 Level 2	Le	vel 3
Description  Available-for-Sale Securities:		Total	Lev	el 1			Le	vel 3
	\$	<b>Total</b> 24,552	Lev	el 1			Le	vel 3
Available-for-Sale Securities:	\$				]	Level 2		vel 3
Available-for-Sale Securities: U.S. government and federal agencies	\$				]	Level 2		vel 3
Available-for-Sale Securities: U.S. government and federal agencies Mortgage-Backed Securities:	\$	24,552			]	24,552		vel 3
Available-for-Sale Securities: U.S. government and federal agencies Mortgage-Backed Securities: FNMA Certificates	\$	24,552 1,103			]	24,552 1,103		vel 3 — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 12. Fair Value (Continued)

Our assessment and classification of an investment within a level can change over time based upon maturity or liquidity of the investment and would be reflected at the beginning of the quarter in which the change occurred.

The following tables detail the assets carried at fair value and measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 and indicate the fair value hierarchy utilized to determine the fair value:

June 30, 2018

				(Unau	ıdited)			
		Total	Lev	el 1	Le	vel 2	]	Level 3
Impaired loans	\$	18,152	\$	_	\$	_	\$	18,152
Loans held for sale	\$	_	\$		\$		\$	
Other real estate owned	\$	_	\$		\$		\$	
				Decembe	r 31 - 201	7		
	_	Total	Lev	el 1		vel 2		Level 3
Impaired loans	\$	25,160	\$		\$		\$	25,160
Loans held for sale	\$		\$		\$		\$	
Other real estate owned	\$	_	\$		\$		\$	

Losses on assets carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis were de minimis for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The fair value information about financial instruments are disclosed, whether or not recognized in the consolidated statements of financial condition, for which it is practicable to estimate that value. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company. The estimated fair value amounts for 2018 and 2017 have been measured as of their respective period-ends and have not been reevaluated or updated for purposes of these consolidated financial statements subsequent to those respective dates. As such, the estimated fair values of these financial instruments subsequent to the respective reporting dates may be different than amounts reported at each period.

The information presented should not be interpreted as an estimate of the fair value of the entire Company since a fair value calculation is only required for a limited portion of the Company's assets and liabilities. Due to the wide range of valuation techniques and the degree of subjectivity used in making the estimates, comparisons between the Company's disclosures and those of other banks may not be meaningful.

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 12. Fair Value (Continued)

As of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the book balances and estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments were as follows:

	Carrying		Fair Value N	<b>1</b> easurements	
	Amount	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)					
Financial assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 49,182	\$ 49,182	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 49,182
Investment securities	28,144	_	28,144	_	28,144
Loans held for sale	_	_	_	_	_
Loans receivable, net	850,426	_	_	857,229	857,229
Accrued interest receivable	3,350	_	3,350	_	3,350
FHLB stock	2,617	2,617	_	_	2,617
Pension plan asset	14,566	_	_	14,565	14,565
Financial liabilities:					
Deposits:					
Demand deposits	108,550	108,550	_	_	108,550
Interest-bearing deposits	209,901	209,901	_	_	209,901
Certificates of deposit	434,804	_	436,474	_	436,474
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance	5,491	_	5,491	_	5,491
Advances from FHLB	37,775	37,775	_	_	37,775
Accrued interest payable	141	_	141	_	141
December 31, 2017					
Financial assets:					
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 59,724	\$ 59,724	\$ —	\$ —	\$ 59,724
Investment securities	28,897	_	28,897	_	28,897
Loans held for sale	_	_	_	_	_
Loans receivable, net	798,703	_	_	813,160	813,160
Accrued interest receivable	3,335	_	3,335	_	3,335
FHLB stock	1,511	1,511	_	_	1,511
Pension plan asset	14,735	_	_	14,696	14,696
Financial liabilities:					
Deposits:					
Demand deposits	103,001	103,001	_	_	103,001
Interest-bearing deposits	200,923	200,923	_	_	200,923
Certificates of deposit	410,061	_	414,902	_	414,902
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance	5,025	_	5,025	_	5,025
Advances from FHLB	36,400	36,400	_	_	36,400
Accrued interest payable	42	_	42	_	42

Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments: Loan commitments on which the committed interest rate is less than the current market rate are insignificant at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

<u>Pension Plan Asset</u>: The pension plan asset included above represents the guaranteed deposit account on the Old Pension Plan. The guaranteed deposit account is valued at fair value by discounting the related cash flows based on current yields of similar instruments with comparable durations considering the creditworthiness of the issuer. Such fair value measurement is considered a Level 3 measurement.

Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

#### Note 13. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the Federal Reserve Board and the OCC, respectively. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's operations and financial statements. Under the regulatory capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Company must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Company's assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Company's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation require the maintenance of minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total risk-based and Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets (as defined), common equity Tier 1 capital (as defined), and Tier 1 capital to adjusted total assets (as defined) adjusted total assets (as defined). Management believes that, as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, all applicable capital adequacy requirements have been met.

The below minimum capital requirements exclude the capital conservation buffer required to avoid limitations on capital distributions including dividend payments and certain discretionary bonus payments to executive officers. The capital conservation buffer is being phased in from 0% for 2015 to 2.5% by 2019. The applicable capital buffer was 12.1% at June 30, 2018 and 12.7% at December 31, 2017.

The most recent notification from the OCC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Company and the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, common equity risk-based, Tier 1 risk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forth in the table below. There were no conditions or events since then that management believes have changed the Bank's category.

The Company's and the Bank's actual capital amounts and ratios as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 as compared to regulatory requirements are as follows:

	Actu	al	For Ca Adequacy		To Be Capitalize Prompt C Action Pr	d Under orrective
	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio	Amount	Ratio
June 30, 2018 (Unaudited)						
PDL Community Bancorp						
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	\$183,624	25.47%	\$ 57,676	8.00%	\$ 72,095	10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	174,574	24.21%	43,257	6.00%	57,676	8.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio	174,574	24.21%	32,443	4.50%	46,861	6.50%
Tier 1 Capital to Total Assets	174,574	18.07%	38,639	4.00%	48,299	5.00%
Ponce Bank						
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	\$144,379	20.07%	\$ 57,550	8.00%	\$ 71,938	10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	135,349	18.81%	43,163	6.00%	57,550	8.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio	135,349	18.81%	32,372	4.50%	46,760	6.50%
Tier 1 Capital to Total Assets	135,349	14.03%	38,591	4.00%	48,239	5.00%
	39					

**Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements** 

As of June 30, 2018 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2017, and Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

## Note 13. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued)

December 31, 2017				
PDL Community Bancorp				
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	\$ 181,196	26.57% \$ 54,557	8.00% \$ 68,196	10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	172,603	25.31% 40,917	6.00% 54,557	8.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio	172,603	25.31% 30,688	4.50% 44,327	6.50%
Tier 1 Capital to Total Assets	172,603	20.02% 34,501	4.00% 43,127	5.00%
Ponce Bank				
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	\$141,120	20.73% \$ 54,447	8.00% \$ 68,059	10.00%
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets	132,577	19.48% 40,835	6.00% 54,447	8.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio	132,577	19.48% 30,626	4.50% 44,238	6.50%
Tier 1 Capital to Total Assets	132,577	14.67% 36,152	4.00% 45,190	5.00%

## Note 14. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

			June	30, 2018		
			(Un	audited)		
	Dec	ember 31, 2017		hange	Jun	e 30, 2018
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale, net	\$	(221)	\$	(182)	\$	(403)
Unrealized losses on pension benefits, net		(7,630)		(43)		(7,673)
Total	\$	(7,851)	\$	(225)	\$	(8,076)

			Decen	ıber 31, 2017		
	Dec	ember 31, 2016	(	Change	Dec	ember 31, 2017
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities available for sale, net	\$	(166)	\$	(55)	\$	(221)
Unrealized gains (losses) on pension benefits, net		(6,084)		(1,546)		(7,630)
Total	\$	(6,250)	\$	(1,601)	\$	(7,851)

## Note 15. Transactions With Related Parties

Directors and officers of the Company have been customers of and have had transactions with the Bank, and it is expected that such persons will continue to have such transactions in the future. Aggregate loan transactions with related parties for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

	F	or the Three Jun	Months e 30,	Ended	1	Ended		
		2018 2017						2017
		(Unau	dited)			(Unau	dited)	
Beginning balance	\$	1,329	\$	1,540	\$	1,351	\$	1,573
Originations		100		_		111		_
Payments		(33)		(31)		(66)		(64)
Ending balance	\$	1,396	\$	1,509	\$	1,396	\$	1,509

The Company held deposits in the amount of \$6,336 and \$5,959 from officers and directors at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

## Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

#### General

Management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, is intended to assist in understanding the financial condition and results of operations of the Company. The information contained in this section should be read in conjunction with the unaudited financial statements and the notes thereto appearing in Part I, Item 1, of this quarterly report on Form 10Q.

#### **Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements**

This quarterly report contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of words such as "estimate," "project," "believe," "intend," "anticipate," "assume," "plan," "seek," "expect," "will," "may," "should," "indicate," "would," "believe," "contemplate," "continue," "target" and words of similar meaning. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to:

- statements of our goals, intentions and expectations;
- statements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategies;
- statements regarding the quality of our loan and investment portfolios; and
- estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits.

These forward-looking statements are based on our current beliefs and expectations and are inherently subject to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In addition, these forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that are subject to change. We are under no duty to and do not take any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the date they are made, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements:

- general economic conditions, either nationally or in our market areas, that are worse than expected;
- · changes in the level and direction of loan delinquencies and write-offs and changes in estimates of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses;
- our ability to access cost-effective funding;
- fluctuations in real estate values and real estate market conditions;
- demand for loans and deposits in our market area;
- our ability to implement and change our business strategies;
- competition among depository and other financial institutions;
- inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins and yields, our mortgage banking revenues, the fair value of financial instruments or our level of loan originations, or increase the level of defaults, losses and prepayments on loans we have made and make;
- adverse changes in the securities or secondary mortgage markets;
- changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions, including changes in regulatory fees and capital requirements, including as a result of Basel III;
- the impact of the Dodd-Frank Act and the implementing regulations;
- changes in the quality or composition of our loan or investment portfolios;
- technological changes that may be more difficult or expensive than expected;
- the inability of third party providers to perform as expected;
- our ability to manage market risk, credit risk and operational risk in the current economic environment;
- · our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities;

- our ability to successfully integrate into our operations any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel we may acquire and our ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames, and any goodwill charges related thereto;
- · changes in consumer spending, borrowing and savings habits;
- changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by the bank regulatory agencies, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board;
- · our ability to retain key employees;
- · our compensation expense associated with equity allocated or awarded to our employees; and
- changes in the financial condition, results of operations or future prospects of issuers of securities that we may own.

Additional factors that may affect our results are discussed in Form 10-K under the heading "Risk Factors" filed with the SEC on April 2, 2018. As of June 30, 2018, the risk factors of the Company have not changed materially from those disclosed in Form 10-K.

Because of these and a wide variety of other uncertainties, our actual future results may be materially different from the results indicated by these forward-looking statements.

#### **Summary of Significant Accounting Policies**

The discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations are based on our consolidated financial statements, which are prepared in conformity with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of income and expenses. We consider the accounting policies discussed below to be significant accounting policies. The estimates and assumptions that we use are based on historical experience and various other factors and are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions, resulting in a change that could have a material impact on the carrying value of our assets and liabilities and our results of operations.

On April 5, 2012, the JOBS Act was signed into law. The JOBS Act contains provisions that, among other things, reduce certain reporting requirements for qualifying public companies. As an "emerging growth company" we intend to delay adoption of new or revised accounting pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to non-public companies. We intend to take advantage of the benefits of this extended transition period. Accordingly, our consolidated financial statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with such new or revised accounting standards.

The following represent our significant accounting policies:

**Loans Receivable.** Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are stated at current unpaid principal balances, net of the allowance for loan losses and including net deferred loan origination fees and costs.

Interest income is accrued based on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized in interest income using the interest method without anticipating prepayments.

A loan is moved to nonaccrual status typically after 90 days of non-payment. The accrual of interest on mortgage and business loans is generally discontinued at the time the loan becomes 90 days past due unless the loan is well-secured and in process of collection. Consumer loans are typically charged-off no later than 120 days past due. Past-due status is based on contractual terms of the loan. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual status or charged-off if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All nonaccrual loans are considered impaired loans.

All interest accrued but not received for loans placed on nonaccrual are reversed against interest income. Interest received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or recorded against principal balances only, until qualifying for return to accrual. Cash-basis interest recognition is only applied on nonaccrual loans with a sufficient collateral margin to ensure no doubt with respect to the collectability of principal. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and remain current for a period of time (typically six months) and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable incurred credit losses. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a loan balance, or portion thereof, is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. Management estimates the allowance balance required using past loan loss experience, the nature and volume of the portfolio, information about specific borrower situations and estimated collateral values, economic conditions, and other factors. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in management's judgment, should be charged-off.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Loans for which the terms have been modified resulting in a concession, and for which the borrower is experiencing financial difficulties, are considered troubled debt restructurings ("TDR") and classified as impaired.

Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.

Impaired loans are measured for impairment using the fair value of the collateral, present value of cash flows, or the observable market price of the note. Impairment measurement for all collateral dependent loans, excluding accruing TDR's is based on the fair value of collateral, less costs to sell, if necessary. A loan is considered collateral dependent if repayment of the loan is expected to be provided solely by the sale or the operation of the underlying collateral.

When a loan is modified in a TDR, management evaluates for any possible impairment using either the discounted cash flows method, where the value of the modified loan is based on the present value of expected cash flows, discounted at the contractual interest rate of the original loan agreement, or by using the fair value of the collateral less selling costs if repayment under the modified terms becomes doubtful.

When establishing the allowance for loan losses, management categorizes loans into risk categories reflecting individual borrower earnings, liquidity, leverage and cash flow, as well as the nature of underlying collateral. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for current factors. The historical loss experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the actual losses experienced over a rolling 12 quarter average. This actual loss experience is supplemented with other economic factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment. These economic factors include consideration of the following: levels of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans; levels of and trends in charge-offs and recoveries; trends in volume and terms of loans; effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; other changes in lending policies, procedures, and practices; experience, ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; national and local economic trends and conditions; industry conditions; and effects of changes in credit concentrations.

Management believes that the allowance for loan losses is appropriate at June 30, 2018. The allowance for loan losses is reviewed by the board of directors on a quarterly basis in compliance with regulatory requirements. In addition, various regulatory agencies periodically review the allowance for loan losses.

*Securities.* Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the date individual investment securities are acquired, and the appropriateness of such classification is reassessed at each statement of financial condition date.

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, if any, are classified as "held to maturity" and recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities, if any, are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses recognized in earnings. Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading, are classified as "available for sale" and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes. Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities.

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") on at least a quarterly basis, and more frequently when economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an unrealized loss position, management considers the extent and duration of the unrealized loss, and the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer. Management also assesses whether it intends to sell, or it is more likely than not that it will be required to sell, a security in an unrealized loss position before recovery of its amortized cost basis. If either of the criteria regarding intent or requirement to sell is met, the entire difference between amortized cost and fair value is recognized as impairment through earnings. For debt securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria, the amount of impairment is split into two components as follows: 1) OTTI related to credit loss, which must be recognized in the consolidated statement of income and 2) OTTI related to other factors, which is recognized in other comprehensive income. The credit loss is defined as the difference between the discounted present value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost basis. For equity securities, the entire amount of impairment is recognized through earnings.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific-identification method. The sale of a held-to-maturity security within three months of its maturity date or after collection of at least 85% of the principal outstanding at the time the security was acquired is considered a maturity for purposes of classification and disclosure.

**Income Taxes.** Income taxes are recognized under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that all or some portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the consolidated financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination.

Interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits, if any, would be classified as additional provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of income.

Refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for management's assessment of recently issued accounting pronouncements.

## Comparison of Financial Condition at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

*Total Assets.* Total assets were \$968.8 million at June 30, 2018, an increase of \$43.3 million, or 4.7%, when compared to \$925.5 million at December 31, 2017 primarily due to the continuation of our loan growth strategy.

*Cash and Cash Equivalents*. Cash and cash equivalents decreased \$10.5 million, or 17.7%, to \$49.2 million at June 30, 2018, when compared to \$59.7 million at December 31, 2017. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was primarily driven by the funding of the loan portfolio due to the increase in loan originations.

*Net Loans Receivable.* Net loans receivable increased \$51.7 million, or 6.5%, to \$850.4 million at June 30, 2018 from \$798.7 million at December 31, 2017. During the six months ended June 30, 2018, there were increases totaling \$52.4 million in loans, \$7.7 million of which were one-to-four family residential loans, \$28.1 million were non-residential loans, \$35.5 million were multi-family loans, \$28.5 million were land and construction loans (including \$37.6 million of advances), and \$454,000 were consumer loans. Business loans decreased \$6.6 million. Principal repayments and other credits to net loans receivable for the six months ended June 30, 2018 were \$41.3 million.

One-to-four family investor-owned residential real estate loans increased \$9.3 million, or 3.2%, to \$296.5 million at June 30, 2018 from \$287.2 million at December 31, 2017; one-to-four family owner-occupied residential real estate loans decreased \$8.6 million or 8.6%, to \$92.2 million at June 30, 2018 from \$100.8 million at December 31, 2017; multi-family loans increased \$29.7 million, or 15.7%, to \$218.2 million at June 30, 2018 from \$188.6 million at December 31, 2017; nonresidential mortgages increased \$17.6 million, or 11.6%, to \$168.8 million at June 30, 2018 from \$151.2 million at December 31, 2017; construction and land loans increased \$5.4 million, or 7.9%, to \$72.6 million at June 30, 2018 from \$67.2 million at December 31, 2017. Consumer loans at June 30, 2018, totaled \$1.0 million, an increase of \$141,000, or 15.9%, from \$886,000 at December 31, 2017. Business loans decreased \$1.2 million, or 9.1%, to \$11.7 million at June 30, 2018 from \$12.9 million at December 31, 2017.

*Available-for-sale securities.* Available-for-sale securities, consisting primarily of U.S. Government agency sponsored securities, as well as mortgage-backed securities decreased \$753,000, or 2.6% to \$28.1 million at June 30, 2018 from \$28.9 million at December 31, 2017. The decrease was primarily driven by the mark-to-market adjustment of the portfolio.

**Deposits.** Total deposits increased \$39.3 million, or 5.5%, to \$753.3 million at June 30, 2018 from \$714.0 million at December 31, 2017. The increase was primarily due to increases in certificates of deposits of \$24.7 million, or 6.0%, to \$434.8 million at June 30, 2018 from \$410.1 million at December 31, 2017 and demand deposit accounts of \$5.6 million, or 5.4%, to \$108.6 million at June 30, 2018 from \$103.0 million at December 31, 2017. In addition, money market accounts increased \$12.1 million, or 26.1%, to \$58.6 million at June 30, 2018 from \$46.5 million at December 31, 2017. The increase in certificates of deposits was primarily attributed to \$17.8 million in brokered deposits and \$15.8 million in listing service deposits, offset by \$8.9 million in maturities and draws. The increase in demand deposits is mainly due to an increase of \$13.3 million in commercial checking accounts, offset by maturities and draws during the period. Brokered and listing service deposits are alternative funding sources that have previously been available, but have not historically been used as a funding source. Deposits obtained through a listing service are not considered brokered because the listing service does not engage in the business of placing deposits; it simply compiles information about interest rates offered on certificates of deposits by other insured depository institutions, then makes the list available to subscribing financial institutions. The brokered and listing service certificates of deposits provide an alternative funding source to fund loan growth and to lock in interest rates and complementary maturity structures in a rising rate environment.

**Borrowings**. We had outstanding borrowings at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 of \$37.8 million and \$36.4 million, respectively. These borrowings are in the form of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLB) and borrowings from our correspondent banking relationships. Historically, we have had limited reliance on borrowings to fund our operations. However, we may utilize advances from the FHLB and borrowings from our correspondent bank relationships to supplement the supply of investable funds and further our organic loan growth.

*Stockholders' Equity.* Total stockholders' equity increased \$1.8 million, or 1.1%, to \$166.6 million at June 30, 2018 from \$164.8 million at December 31, 2017. The increase was substantially due to net income of \$1.6 million.

#### Comparison of Operating Results for the Three Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

*General*. Net income decreased \$425,000, or 37.8%, to \$699,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018, compared to \$1.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017. The decrease was due to an increase in non-interest expense of \$1.5 million, or 20.9%, to \$8.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$7.0 million for the same period last year, and a decrease in non-interest income of \$360,000, or 40.7%, to \$524,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$884,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. These changes were offset by an increase in net interest income after provision for loan losses of \$920,000, or 11.7%, to \$8.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$7.9 million for the same period last year, and a decrease of \$475,000 in income tax expense, or 74.1%, to \$166,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$641,000, for the three months ended June 30, 2017, resulting from the tax law change.

Interest Income. Interest and dividend income increased \$1.7 million, or 17.3%, to \$11.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$9.7 million for the same period last year. The increase was due primarily to a \$1.5 million, or 15.4%, increase in interest income on loans, which is our primary source of interest income. Our average balance of loans increased \$134.3 million, or 18.9%, to \$843.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$709.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017. The increase in average balance resulted primarily from increases in the multifamily residential and nonresidential mortgage loan portfolios. Our average yield on loans decreased 16 basis points to 5.26% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 5.42% for the same period last year, as higher-yielding loans have been repaid or refinanced.

Interest and dividends income on investment securities and FHLB stock increased \$207,000, or 168.3%, to \$330,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$123,000 for the same period last year. The average rate we earned on investment securities and FHLB stock increased 57 basis points to 1.63% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 1.07% for the same period last

year. Our average balance of investment securities and FHLB stock and FHLB demand deposit account increased \$35.2 million, or 76.5%, to \$81.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$46.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased \$629,000 or 38.8%, to \$2.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$1.6 million for the same period last year. The increase was the result of an increase in interest expense on borrowings, certificates of deposit, and other deposits. Specifically, interest expense on certificates of deposits increased \$419,000, or 29.3%, to \$1.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$1.4 million for the same period in 2017. The average balance of certificates of deposit increased \$68.2 million, or 17.9%, to \$448.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$380.7 million for the same period last year, while the average rate we paid on certificates of deposit increased 15 basis points to 1.65% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 1.50% for the three months ended June 30, 2017.

Interest expense on other deposits and borrowings increased \$210,000 to \$403,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$193,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. The average balance of other deposits and borrowings increased \$25.6 million, or 12.0%, to \$239.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$213.5 million for the same period last year, and the average rate we paid on other deposits and borrowings increased 31 basis points to 0.67% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 0.36% for the same period in 2017, reflecting higher market interest rates.

**Net Interest Income.** Net interest income increased \$1.1 million, or 13.0%, to \$9.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$8.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2017, primarily as a result of increasing loan volumes offset by lower average market yields on earning assets. Our average net interest-earning assets increased by \$74.3 million, or 48.0%, to \$228.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from \$154.6 million for the same period in 2017, due primarily to our loan growth, described above. Our net interest rate spread decreased by 43 basis points to 3.64% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 4.07% for the three months ended June 30, 2018 from 4.29% for the same period last year, reflecting primarily a higher cost of funds and lower market yields on earning assets.

An increase in interest rates will present us with a challenge in managing our interest rate risk. As a general matter, our interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature more quickly than our interest-earning assets, which can result in interest expense increasing more rapidly than increases in interest income as interest rates increase. Therefore, increases in interest rates may adversely affect our net interest income and net economic value, which in turn would likely have an adverse effect on our results of operations. We expect that our net interest income and our net economic value would decrease as a result of an instantaneous increase in interest rates. To help manage interest rate risk, we are promoting core deposit products while concurrently diversifying our loan portfolio by introducing new lending programs. See "—Management of Market Risk" for additional information.

**Provision for Loan Losses.** Provisions for loan losses are charged to operations to establish an allowance for loan losses at a level necessary to absorb known and inherent losses that are both probable and reasonably estimable at the date of the financial statements. In evaluating the level of the allowance for loan losses, management analyzes several qualitative loan portfolio risk factors including, but not limited to, management's ongoing review and grading of loans, facts and issues related to specific loans, historical loan loss and delinquency experience, trends in past due and non-accrual loans, existing risk characteristics of specific loans or loan pools, the fair value of underlying collateral, current economic conditions and other qualitative and quantitative factors which could affect potential credit losses. See "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" and "—Allowance for Loan Losses" for additional information.

After an evaluation of these factors, we established a provision for loan losses for the three months ended June 30, 2018 of \$337,000 as compared to \$207,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2017. Our allowance for loan losses was \$11.8 million at June 30, 2018 as compared to \$11.1 million at December 31, 2017. The allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.36% at three months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to 1.37% at December 31, 2017, and the allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans increased to 176.6% at June 30, 2018 from 97.1% at December 31, 2017.

To the best of our knowledge, we have recorded all loan losses that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at June 30, 2018. However, future changes in the factors described above, including, but not limited to, actual loss experience with respect to our loan portfolio, could result in material increases in our provision for loan losses. In addition, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, as an integral part of its examination process, periodically reviews our allowance for loan losses and as a result of such reviews, we may determine to adjust our allowance for loan losses. However, regulatory agencies are not directly involved in establishing the allowance for loan losses as the process is our responsibility and any increase or decrease in the allowance is the responsibility of management.

*Non-interest Income*. The decrease in non-interest income for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 was primarily due to decreases of \$183,000 in late and prepayment charges and \$126,000 in brokerage commissions.

	For	the Three	hs Ended		Chan	uge.	For	r the Six N	Months e 30.	Ended		Cha	nga
	June 30, 2018 2017		A	mount	Percent	_	2018	/	2017	7 An		Percent	
						(Dollars in t	housa	nds)					
Service charges and fees	\$	214	\$ 225	\$	(11)	(4.9%)	\$	437	\$	454	\$	(17)	(3.7%)
Brokerage commissions		42	168		(126)	(75.0%)		138		286		(148)	(51.7%)
Late and prepayment charges		52	235		(183)	(77.9%)		263		446		(183)	(41.0%)
Other		216	256		(40)	(15.6%)		571		456		115	25.2%
Total noninterest income	\$	524	\$ 884	\$	(360)	(40.7%)	\$	1,409	\$	1,642	\$	(233)	(14.2%)

**Non-interest Expenses.** For the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017, compensation and benefits expense increased by \$607,000 mainly due to our investment in our employee base, including the senior management team and our sales and relationship management personnel, to help support our continued growth strategy. Occupancy expenses increased \$317,000 and office supplies, telephone and postage increased \$70,000. Other operating expenses increased by \$583,000, primarily due to increases in loss on loans sold of \$197,000 and audit fees and professional services of \$333,000, and an increase of \$86,000 in organizational dues, subscriptions, and contributions. Provision for contingencies increased \$32,000. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in data processing expenses of \$113,000 and decreases of \$32,000 in direct loan expenses, for the three months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017.

	For the Three Months Ended June 30,				Chan	ge	For the Six M		Ended	Chai	nge	
	2018		2017		Aı	nount	Percent	2018	2	017	Amount	Percent
							(Dollars in t	housands)				
Compensation and benefits	\$	4,563	\$	3,956	\$	607	15.3%	\$ 8,918	\$	7,785	\$1,133	14.6%
Occupancy		1,717		1,400		317	22.6%	3,208		2,826	382	13.5%
Data processing		300		413		(113)	(27.4%)	708		866	(158)	(18.2%)
Direct loan expense		152		184		(32)	(17.4%)	307		379	(72)	(19.0%)
Insurance and surety bond premiums		99		79		20	25.3%	188		161	27	16.8%
Office supplies, telephone and postage		352		282		70	24.8%	652		536	116	21.6%
Federal deposit insurance premiums		66		58		8	13.8%	134		124	10	8.1%
Other operating expenses		1,206		623		583	93.6%	2,599		1,414	1,185	83.8%
Total noninterest expense	\$	8,455	\$	6,995	\$	1,460	20.9%	\$ 16,714	\$ 1	4,091	\$2,623	18.6%

*Income Tax Provision.* We incurred income tax expense of \$166,000 and \$641,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, resulting in effective rates of 19.2% and 36.3%, respectively. At June 30, 2018, net deferred tax assets amounted to \$3.8 million compared to \$3.9 million at December 31, 2017. The decrease in tax expense resulted primarily from a reduction of the effective tax rate due to federal tax reform enacted in December 2017.

#### Comparison of Operating Results for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

*General*. Net income decreased \$47,000, or 2.8%, to \$1.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018, compared to \$1.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The decrease was due to an increase in non-interest expense of \$2.6 million, or 18.6%, to \$16.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$14.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017, and a decrease in non-interest income of \$233,000, or 14.2%, to \$1.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$1.6 million for the same period last year. These changes were offset by an increase of \$2.2 million, or 14.9%, to \$17.4 million in net interest income after provision for loan losses for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$15.1 million for the same period last year, and by a decrease of \$552,000 in income tax expense to \$434,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018, from \$986,000 for the same period in 2017, resulting from the tax law change.

Interest Income. Interest and dividend income increased \$3.6 million, or 19.4%, to \$22.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$18.5 million for the same period last year. The increase was due primarily to a \$3.3 million, or 18.0%, increase in interest income on loans, which is our primary source of interest income. Our average balance of loans increased \$144.2 million, or 21.0%, to \$830.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$685.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The increase in average balance resulted primarily from increases in the multifamily residential and nonresidential mortgage loan portfolios. Our average yield on loans decreased 13 basis points to 5.21% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 5.34% for the same period last year, as higher-yielding loans have been repaid or refinanced.

Interest and dividends income on investment securities and FHLB stock increased \$329,000, or 101.2%, to \$654,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$325,000 for the same period last year. The average rate we earned on investment securities and FHLB stock increased 47 basis points to 1.68% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 1.21% for the same period last year. Our average balance of investment securities and FHLB stock and FHLB demand deposit account increased \$24.2 million, or 44.7%, to \$78.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$54.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased \$1.2 million or 37.5%, to \$4.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$3.1 million for the same period last year. The increase was the result of an increase in interest expense on borrowings, certificates of deposit, and other deposits. Specifically, interest expense on certificates of deposits increased \$853,000, or 31.1%, to \$3.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$2.7 million for the same period in 2017. The average balance of certificates of deposit increased \$68.0 million, or 18.3%, to \$439.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$371.6 million for the same period last year, while the average rate we paid on certificates of deposit increased 16 basis points to 1.65% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 1.49% for the six months ended June 30, 2017.

Interest expense on other deposits and borrowings increased \$314,000 to \$686,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$372,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2017. The average balance of other deposits and borrowings increased \$16.4 million, or 7.7%, to \$229.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$213.2 million for the same period last year, and the average rate we paid on other deposits and borrowings increased 25 basis points to 0.60% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 0.35% for the same period in 2017, reflecting higher market interest rates.

*Net Interest Income.* Net interest income increased \$2.4 million, or 15.8%, to \$17.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$15.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2017, primarily as a result of increasing loan volumes offset by lower market yields on earning assets. Our average net interest-earning assets increased by \$82.5 million, or 55.2%, to \$232.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$149.4 million for the same period in 2017, due primarily to our loan growth, described above. Our net interest rate spread decreased by 35 basis points to 3.63% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 3.98% for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from 4.19% for the same period last year, reflecting primarily a higher cost of funds and lower market yields on earning assets.

**Provision for Loan Losses.** The provision for loan losses increased \$172,000, or 66.4%, to \$431,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 from \$259,000 for the same six month period in 2017. Our allowance for loan losses was \$11.8 million at June 30, 2018 as compared to \$11.1 million at December 31, 2017. The allowance for loan losses to total loans was 1.36% at three months ended June 30, 2018 as compared to 1.37% at December 31, 2017, and the allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans increased to 176.6% at June 30, 2018 from 97.1% at December 31, 2017.

*Non-interest Income*. The decrease in non-interest income for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017 was primarily due to decreases of \$183,000, in late payments and charges and \$148,000 in brokerage commissions.

**Non-interest Expenses.** For the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017, compensation and benefits expense increased by \$1.1 million mainly due to our investment in our employee base, including the senior management team and our sales and relationship management personnel, to help support our continued growth strategy. Occupancy expenses increased \$382,000 and office, telephone and postage increased \$116,000. Other operating expenses increased by \$1.2 million, primarily due to increases in legal and consultant fees of \$589,000, increases in audit and professional services of \$167,000, and an increase in loss on loans sold of \$230,000. These increases were partially offset by decreases in data processing expenses of \$158,000, and decreases of \$72,000 in direct loan expenses, for the six months ended June 30, 2018 compared to the same period in 2017.

*Income Tax Provision.* We incurred income tax expense of \$434,000 and \$986,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, resulting in effective rates of 20.9% and 36.9%, respectively. At June 30, 2018, net deferred tax assets amounted to \$3.8 million compared to \$3.9 million at December 31, 2017. The decrease in tax expense resulted primarily from a reduction of the effective tax rate due to federal tax reform enacted in December 2017.

## **Average Balance Sheets**

The following tables set forth average balance sheets, average yields and costs, and certain other information for the periods indicated. No tax-equivalent yield adjustments have been made, as the effects would be immaterial. All average balances are monthly average balances. Non-accrual loans were included in the computation of average balances. The yields set forth below include the effect of deferred fees, discounts, and premiums that are amortized or accreted to interest income or interest expense. Loan balances exclude loans held for sale.

				For the Three Mont	ths E	Ended June 3	0,			
			2018				2017			
		Average		(Unau		Áverage				
		tstanding Balance	Interest	Average Yield/Rate (1)		utstanding Balance		Interest	Average Yield/Rate (1)	
	_			(Dollars in t	thou	sands)				
Interest-earning assets:										
Loans	\$	843,641	\$ 11,053	5.26%	\$	709,330	\$	9,581	5.42%	
Available-for-sale securities		28,267	104	1.48%		34,251		90	1.05%	
Other (2)	_	52,967	 226	1.71%		11,752		33	1.13%	
Total interest-earning assets		924,875	11,383	4.94%		755,333		9,704	5.15%	
Non-interest-earning assets	_	33,424				33,568				
Total assets	\$	958,299			\$	788,901				
Interest-bearing liabilities:										
Savings accounts	\$	126,133	\$ 148	0.47%	\$	128,004	\$	123	0.39%	
Interest-bearing demand		84,339	50	0.24%		74,862		37	0.20%	
Certificates of deposit		448,883	1,847	1.65%		380,664	_	1,428	1.50%	
Total deposits		659,355	2,045	1.24%		583,530		1,588	1.09%	
Advance payments by borrowers		8,045	1	0.05%		6,596		1	0.06%	
Borrowings		28,595	204	2.86%		10,648		32	1.21%	
Total interest-bearing liabilities		695,995	2,250	1.30%		600,774		1,621	1.08%	
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:										
Non-interest-bearing demand		89,935	_			89,793		_		
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities		5,104	 			3,396				
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities		95,039				93,189	_			
Total liabilities		791,034	2,250			693,963		1,621		
Total equity		167,265				94,938				
Total liabilities and total equity	\$	958,299		1.30%	\$	788,901			1.08%	
Net interest income			\$ 9,133				\$	8,083		
Net interest rate spread (3)				3.64%					4.07%	
Net interest-earning assets (4)	\$	228,880			\$	154,559				
Net interest margin (5)	_			3.96%					4.29%	
Assessed interest assessed assessed to										
Average interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities				132.89%					125.73%	

- (1) Annualized where appropriate.
- (2) Includes FHLB demand accounts and FHLB stock dividends.
- (3) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average rate of interest-bearing liabilities.
- (4) Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.
- (5) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

				2018					2017	
	_				(Unau					
	Average Outstanding Balance				Average		Average utstanding			Average
				nterest	Yield/Rate (1)		Balance		Interest	Yield/Rate (1)
Interest coming coasts					(Dollars in	thou	sands)			
Interest-earning assets: Loans	\$ 83	30,114	\$	21,439	5.21%	¢	685,883	\$	18,172	5.34%
Available-for-sale securities		28,478	Ф	21,439	1.48%	Ф	43,246	Ф	273	1.27%
Other (2)		49,852		445	1.80%		10,862		52	0.97%
Total interest-earning assets		08,444	_	22,093	4.90%	_	739,991	_	18,497	5.04%
Non-interest-earning assets		34,414		22,033	4.90 /0		33,229		10,437	5.04 /0
Total assets		42,858				\$	773,220			
	J 34	+2,030				Ф	773,220			
Interest-bearing liabilities:	<b>ተ</b> 17	DE 200	ď	270	0.450/	φ	127.000	φ	2.45	0.200/
Savings accounts Interest-bearing demand		25,308 80,837	\$	279 102	0.45% 0.25%	\$	127,890	\$	245 64	0.39% 0.18%
<u> </u>		39,614			1.65%		73,502			1.49%
Certificates of deposit			_	3,597		_	371,617	_	2,744	
Total deposits		45,759 7,313		3,978 2	1.24% 0.06%		573,009		3,053 2	1.07% 0.07%
Advance payments by borrowers Borrowings		23,409		303	2.61%		5,766 11,795		61	1.04%
_		76,481		4,283	1.28%	_			3,116	
Total interest-bearing liabilities	0/	/0,401		4,203	1.20%		590,570		3,110	1.06%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities: Non-interest-bearing demand	C	94.625					84,957			
Other non-interest-bearing liabilities	_	5,096		<del></del>			3,322		_	
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities		99,721				_	88,279	_		
Total liabilities				4,283		_			3,116	
Total radifices Total equity		76,202 66,656		4,263			678,849 94,371		3,110	
Total liabilities and total equity		42,858			1.28%	\$				1.06%
	J 94	+2,030	Φ.	45.040	1,20 70	Ф	773,220	Φ.	45.004	1.00 %
Net interest income			\$	17,810				\$	15,381	
Net interest rate spread(3)					3.63%					3.98%
Net interest-earning assets (4)	\$ 23	31,963				\$	149,421			
Net interest margin (5)					3.95%					4.19%
Average interest-earning assets to										
interest-bearing liabilities					134.29%					125.30%

For the Six Months Ended June 30,

- (1) Annualized where appropriate.
- (2) Includes FHLB demand accounts and FHLB stock dividends.
- (3) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the weighted average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted average rate of interest-bearing liabilities.
- (4) Net interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities.
- (5) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

#### Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our net interest income for the periods indicated. The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate). The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The total column represents the sum of the prior columns. For purposes of this table, changes attributable to both rate and volume, which cannot be segregated, have been allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume.

	F	or the Th		Months En 118 vs. 2017		June 30,	For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2018 vs. 2017									
				Unaudited)			-	(Unaudited)								
	Incre	ease (Dec	reas	se) Due to	Tota	al Increase	In	crease (Dec	Total Increase							
	Vol	lume		Rate	(Decrease)		Volume		Rate		(De	ecrease)				
Interest-earning assets:	(In thousands)								thousands)							
Loans	\$	2,844	\$	(1,372)	\$	1,472	\$	4,385	\$	(1,118)	\$	3,267				
Securities		(105)		119		14		(123)		59		(64)				
Other		(117)		310		193		(23)		416		393				
Total interest-earning assets		2,622		(943)		1,679		4,239		(643)		3,596				
Interest-bearing liabilities:						,										
Savings accounts		(82)		107		25		(45)		79		34				
Interest-bearing demand		(20)		33		13		(26)		64		38				
Certificates of deposit		(235)		654		419		145		708		853				
Total deposits	-	(337)		794		457		74		851		925				
Advance payment by borrowers		1		(1)		_		1		(1)		_				
Borrowings		(302)		474		172		(125)		367		242				
Total interest-bearing liabilities		(638)		1,267		629		(50)		1,217		1,167				
Change in net interest income	\$	3,260	\$	(2,210)	\$	1,050	\$	4,289	\$	(1,860)	\$	2,429				

#### **Management of Market Risk**

General. Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk because, as a financial institution, the majority of our assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a principal part of our operations is to manage interest rate risk and limit the exposure of our financial condition and results of operations to changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/Liability Management Committee is responsible for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities, for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent with the policy and guidelines approved by our Board of Directors. We currently utilize a third-party modeling solution that is prepared on a quarterly basis, to evaluate our sensitivity to changing interest rates, given our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.

We do not engage in hedging activities, such as engaging in futures, options or swap transactions, or investing in high-risk mortgage derivatives, such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real estate mortgage investment conduit residual interests or stripped mortgage backed securities.

**Net Interest Income.** We analyze our sensitivity to changes in interest rates through a net interest income model. Net interest income is the difference between the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and the interest we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowings. We estimate what our net interest income would be for a 12-month period. We then calculate what the net interest income would be for the same period under the assumptions that the United States Treasury yield curve increases or decreases instantaneously by 100 basis point increments, with changes in interest rates representing immediate and permanent shifts in the yield curve. A basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent, and 100 basis points equals one percent. An increase in interest rates from 3% to 4% would mean, for example, a 100 basis point increase in the "Change in Interest Rates" in the net present value table below.

The table below sets forth, as of June 30, 2018, the calculation of the estimated changes in our net interest income that would result from the designated immediate changes in the United States Treasury yield curve.

Rate Shift (1)	Year	terest Income 1 Forecast s in thousands)	Year 1 Change from Level
+400	\$	32,727	-5.57%
+300		33,596	-3.06%
+200		34,233	-1.22%
+100		34,614	-0.12%
Level		34,656	0.00%
-100		34,397	-0.75%

(1) Assumes an immediate uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.

The table above indicates that at June 30, 2018, in the event of an instantaneous 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would experience a 1.22% decrease in net interest income, and in the event of an instantaneous 100 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would experience a 0.75% decrease in net interest income.

**Net Present Value.** We also compute amounts by which the net present value of our assets and liabilities ("NPV") would change in the event of a range of assumed changes in market interest rates. This model uses a discounted cash flow analysis and an option-based pricing approach to measure the interest rate sensitivity of net portfolio value. The model estimates the economic value of each type of asset, liability and off-balance sheet contract under the assumptions that the United States Treasury yield curve increases or decreases instantaneously by 100 basis point increments, with changes in interest rates representing immediate and permanent shifts in the yield curve.

The table below sets forth, as of June 30, 2018, the calculation of the estimated changes in our NPV that would result from the designated immediate changes in the United States Treasury yield curve.

			_	NPV as a Percenta Value of Ass			
Change in Interest	Estimated	Estimated Increase NPV	(Decrease) in	NPV	Increase (Decrease)		
Rates (basis points) (1)	 NPV (2)	Amount	Percent	Ratio (4)	(basis points)		
		(Dollars in the	ousands)				
+400	\$ 130,626	\$ (35,943)	-21.58%	14.47%	(241)		
+300	140,108	(26,461)	-15.89%	15.18%	(170)		
+200	149,744	(16,825)	-10.10%	15.86%	(102)		
+100	159,134	(7,435)	-4.46%	16.48%	(40)		
	166,569	_	0.00%	16.88%	_		
-100	172,358	5,789	3.48%	17.13%	25		

- (1) Assumes an immediate uniform change in interest rates at all maturities.
- (2) NPV is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts.
- (3) Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets.
- (4) NPV Ratio represents NPV divided by the present value of assets.

The table above indicates that at June 30, 2018, in the event of an instantaneous 200 basis point increase in interest rates, we would experience an 10.10% decrease in net present value, and in the event of an instantaneous 100 basis point decrease in interest rates, we would experience a 3.48% increase in net present value.

*GAP Analysis*. In addition, we analyze our interest rate sensitivity by monitoring our interest rate sensitivity "gap." Our interest rate sensitivity gap is the difference between the amount of our interest-earning assets maturing or repricing within a specific time period and the amount of our interest bearing-liabilities maturing or repricing within that same time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets maturing or repricing during a period exceeds the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities maturing or repricing during the same period, and a gap is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities maturing or repricing during the same period.

The following table sets forth our interest-earning assets and our interest-bearing liabilities at June 30, 2018, which are anticipated to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown based upon certain assumptions. The amounts of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular period were determined in accordance with the earlier of term to repricing or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability. The table sets forth an approximation of the projected repricing of assets and liabilities at June 30, 2018, on the basis of contractual maturities, anticipated prepayments and scheduled rate adjustments. The loan amounts in the table reflect principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a result of contractual amortization and as a result of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate loans.

	_								(1	ne 30, 2018 Unaudited) e to Repricing							
		Zero to 90 Days		Zero to 180 Days	7	ero Days to One Year	Z	Zero Days to Two Years		ero Days to Five Years		ive Years Plus	A	Total Earning Assets & Costing iabilities	I	Non Earning Assets & Non Costing iabilities	Total
A								(D	olla	rs in thousand	s)						
Assets: Interest-bearing deposits in banks	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	42,094	\$	7,088	\$ 49,182
Securities		5,100	Ť	10,079	Ť	17,434	Ť	27,339	Ť	28,655	Ť	28,655	Ť	28,655		(511)	 28,144
Net loans (includes LHFS)		62,611		103,796		191,743		330,817		788,954		855,836		855,836		(5,410)	850,426
FHLB Stock		2,617		2,617		2,617		2,617		2,617		2,617		2,617			2,617
Other assets		· —		_		_		_		_		_		_		38,444	38,444
Total	\$	112,422	\$	158,586	\$	253,888	\$	402,867	\$	862,320	\$	929,202	\$	929,202	\$	39,611	\$ 968,813
Liabilities:																	
Non-maturity deposits	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	209,901	\$	108,550	\$ 318,451
Certificates of deposit		15,550		40,880		186,319		274,394		434,804		434,804		434,804			434,804
Other liabilities		37,775		37,775		37,775		37,775		37,775		37,775		37,775		11,205	48,980
Total liabilities		263,226		288,556		433,995		522,070		682,480		682,480		682,480		119,755	802,235
Capital		_		_		_		_		_		_		_		166,578	166,578
Total liabilities and capital	\$	263,226	\$	288,556	\$	433,995	\$	522,070	\$	682,480	\$	682,480	\$	682,480	\$	286,333	\$ 968,813
Asset/liability gap	\$	(150,804)	\$	(129,970)	\$	(180,107)	\$	(119,203)	\$	179,840	\$	246,722	\$	246,722			
Gap/assets ratio		42.71%		54.96%		58.50%		77.17%		126.35%		136.15%		136.15%			

At June 30, 2018, our asset/liability gap from zero days to one year was (\$180.1 million), resulting in a gap/assets ratio of 58.50%.

The following table sets forth our interest-earning assets and our interest-bearing liabilities at December 31, 2017, which are anticipated to reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown based upon certain assumptions. The amounts of assets and liabilities shown which reprice or mature during a particular period were determined in accordance with the earlier of term to repricing or the contractual maturity of the asset or liability. The table sets forth an approximation of the projected repricing of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2017, on the basis of contractual maturities, anticipated prepayments and scheduled rate adjustments. The loan amounts in the table reflect principal balances expected to be redeployed and/or repriced as a result of contractual amortization and as a result of contractual rate adjustments on adjustable-rate loans.

December 31, 2017 Time to Repricing Non Total Earning Assets & Zero Days Zero Days Zero Days Five Assets & Costing to One Zero to Zero to to Two to Five Years 90 Days 180 Days Year Years Years Plus Liabilitie Liabilitie Total (Dollars in thousands) Assets: Interest-bearing deposits in banks \$ 34,979 34,979 \$ 34,979 34,979 34,979 34,979 34,979 24,745 \$ 59,724 \$ \$ \$ \$ 29,234 29,234 Securities 4,124 7,714 14,876 25,407 29,234 (337)28,897 Net loans (includes LHFS) 56,623 108,029 191,573 321,571 738,534 798,834 798,834 (131)798,703 FHLB Stock 1,511 1,511 1,511 1,511 Other assets 3 36,684 36,687 Total 95,726 150,722 241,428 381,957 804,261 864,561 864,561 60,961 925,522 Liabilities: Non-maturity deposits 207.452 207.452 207.452 207.452 207.452 207.452 207.452 96,472 303.924 80.015 158.836 407,800 410,061 410,061 410.061 Certificates of deposit 40 874 241,656 Other liabilities 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 29,400 36,400 10,352 46,752 Total liabilities 307,467 386,288 469,108 646,913 653,913 106,824 760,737 268,326 635,252 Capital 164,785 164,785 Total liabilities and capital 268,326 307,467 386,288 469,108 635,252 646,913 653,913 271,609 925,522 Asset/liability gap (172,600)\$ (156,745)(144,860)\$ (87,151)169,009 217,648 210,648 Gap/assets ratio 35.68% 49.02% 62.50% 81.42% 126.61% 133.64% 132.21%

At December 31, 2017, our asset/liability gap from zero days to one year was (\$144.9 million), resulting in a gap/assets ratio of 62.50%.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in the above interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes require making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the net interest income and net economic value tables presented assume that the composition of our interest-sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being measured and assumes that a particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or repricing of specific assets and liabilities. Accordingly, although the net interest income and NPV tables provide an indication of our interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on net interest income and NPV and will differ from actual results. Furthermore, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features that restrict changes in interest rates both on a short-term basis and over the life of the asset. In the event of changes in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the gap table.

Interest rate risk calculations also may not reflect the fair values of financial instruments. For example, decreases in market interest rates can increase the fair values of our loans, deposits and borrowings.

## **Liquidity and Capital Resources**

Liquidity describes our ability to meet the financial obligations that arise in the ordinary course of business. Liquidity is primarily needed to meet the borrowing and deposit withdrawal requirements of our customers and to fund current and planned expenditures. Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and securities and proceeds from the sale of loans. We also have the ability to borrow from the FHLB of New York. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had \$37.8 million and \$16.4 million, respectively, of term and overnight outstanding advances from the FHLB, and also had a guarantee from the FHLB through a standby letter of credit of \$4.3 million. At June 30, 2018, we had eligible collateral of approximately \$71.4 million in mortgage loans available to secure advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York. We also have an unsecured line of credit of \$25.0 million with one of our correspondent banks, of which we had none and \$20.0 million outstanding at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively. We did not have any securities sold under repurchase agreements with brokers as of June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017.

Although maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and loan prepayments are greatly influenced by market interest rates, economic conditions, and competition. Our most liquid assets are cash and interest-bearing deposits in banks. The levels of these assets are dependent on our operating, financing, lending, and investing activities during any given period.

Net cash provided by operating activities was \$3.6 million and \$1.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Net cash (used in) investing activities, which consists primarily of disbursements for loan originations and the purchases of securities, offset by principal collections on loans, proceeds from maturing securities and pay downs on mortgage-backed securities, was \$(54.8) million and \$(68.3) million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Net cash provided by financing activities, consisting of activities in deposit accounts and advances, was \$40.6 million and \$64.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

We are committed to maintaining an adequate liquidity position. We monitor our liquidity position on a daily basis. We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds to meet our current funding commitments. Based on our deposit retention experience and current pricing strategy, we anticipate that a significant portion of maturing time deposits will be retained.

At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we exceeded all of our regulatory capital requirements, and we were categorized as well capitalized at June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017. Management is not aware of any conditions or events that would change our category.

# Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Commitments. As a financial services provider, we routinely are a party to various financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risks, such as commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit. While these contractual obligations represent our future cash requirements, a significant portion of commitments to extend credit may expire without being drawn upon. Such commitments are subject to the same credit policies and approval process accorded to loans we make. At June 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we had outstanding commitments to originate loans and extend credit of \$102.3 million and \$94.8 million, respectively. We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds available to meet our current lending commitments. Certificates of deposit that are scheduled to mature in less than one year from June 30, 2018 totaled \$186.3 million. Management expects that a substantial portion of the maturing time deposits will be renewed. However, if a substantial portion of these deposits is not retained, we may utilize FHLB advances, unsecured credit lines with correspondent banks, or raise interest rates on deposits to attract new accounts, which may result in higher levels of interest expense.

**Contractual Obligations**. In the ordinary course of our operations, we enter into certain contractual obligations. Such obligations include data processing services, operating leases for premises and equipment, agreements with respect to borrowed funds and deposit liabilities.

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The information required by this item is included in Part I, Item 2 of this report under "Management of Market Risk".

#### Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of June 30, 2018. Based on that evaluation, the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, concluded that the Registrant's disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2018, there were no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

## PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

## Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

We are not involved in any pending legal proceedings as a plaintiff or a defendant other than routine legal proceeding occurring in the ordinary course of business. At June 30, 2018, we were not involved in any legal proceedings the outcome of which we believe would be material to our financial condition or results of operations.

#### Item 1A. Risk Factors.

In addition to the other information set forth in this quarterly report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in our Form 10-K under the heading "Risk Factors" filed with the SEC on April 2nd, 2018. The Company's evaluation of the risk factors applicable to it has not changed materially from those disclosed in our Form 10-K.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

None

Item 5. Other Information.

None

# Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit Number	Description
3.1	Charter of PDL Community Bancorp (attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's amendment No. 1 to the Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on May 22, 2017).
3.2	Bylaws of PDL Community Bancorp (attached as Exhibit 3.2 to the Registrant's amendment No. 2 to the Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on July 27, 2017.
4.1	Form of Common Stock Certificate of PDL Community Bancorp (attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's amendment No. 2 to the Form S-1 (File No., 333-217275) filed with the Commission on July 27, 2017).
10.1	Ponce Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan (attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.2	Ponce Bank ESOP Equalization Plan (attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.3	Ponce De Leon Federal Deferred Compensation Plan (attached as Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.4	Employment Agreement dated as of March 23, 2017, by and between Ponce de Leon Federal Bank and Carlos P. Naudon (attached as Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.5	Form of Employment Agreement to be entered into by and among Ponce Bank Mutual Holding Company, PDL Community Bancorp and Carlos P. Naudon (attached as Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.6	Employment Agreement dated March 23, 2017, by and between Ponce De Leon Federal Bank and Steven Tsavaris (attached as Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.7	Form of Employment Agreement to be entered into by and among Ponce Bank Mutual Holding Company, PDL Community Bancorp and Steven Tsavaris (attached as Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.8	Employment Agreement dated March 31, 2017, by and between Ponce De Leon Federal Bank and Frank Perez (attached as Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
10.9	Form of Employment Agreement to be entered into by and among Ponce Bank Mutual Holding Company, PDL Community Bancorp and Frank Perez (attached as Exhibit 10.9 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
21.1	Subsidiaries of the Registrant (attached as Exhibit 21.1 to the Registrant's Form S-1 (File No. 333-217275) filed with the Commission on April 12, 2017).
31.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1*	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
	57

32.2*	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

<sup>\*</sup> Filed herewith.

# **SIGNATURES**

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 10, 2018

Date: August 10, 2018

Company Name

By: /s/ Carlos P. Naudon

Carlos P. Naudon

**President and Chief Executive Officer** 

By: /s/ Frank Perez

Frank Perez

**Executive Vice President and Chief Financial** 

Officer

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

#### I, Carlos P. Naudon, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of PDL Community Bancorp;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the small business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer's auditors and the audit committee of the small business issuer's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 10, 2018 By: /s/ Carlos P. Naudon

Carlos P. Naudon President Chief Executive Officer

# CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

#### I, Frank Perez, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of PDL Community Bancorp;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the small business issuer as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the small business issuer and have:
  - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the small business issuer, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
  - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the small business issuer's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
  - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the small business issuer's most recent fiscal quarter (the small business issuer's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The small business issuer's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the small business issuer's auditors and the audit committee of the small business issuer's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the small business issuer's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the small business issuer's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 10, 2018 By: /s/ Frank Perez

Frank Perez Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

## CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PDL Community Bancorp (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2018 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: August 10, 2018 By: /s/ Carlos P. Naudon

Carlos P. Naudon President Chief Executive Officer

## CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PDL Community Bancorp (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2018 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the "Report"), I certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date: August 10, 2018 By: /s/ Frank Perez

Frank Perez Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer